THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

Agenda
July 22, 2025

VIDEO RECORDING DISCLAIMER AND LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

REGULAR MEETING AT 7:00 P.M.:

Confirmation of the minutes of the public meeting of July 8, 2025 (ZBA M Zone) (1)
Confirmation of the minutes of the public meeting of July 8, 2025 (ZBA CH/MH Zone) (2)
Confirmation of the minutes of the regular meeting of July 8, 2025 3)
List of proposed resolutions (4)

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE THEREOEF:

DELEGATIONS:

Danika McCann, Recreation Co-ordinator — July 2025 Report and Heritage Festival Summary (5)
Doug Godin, Chief Building Official — July 2025 Report and Staff Report on Septic Approvals (6)

ACCOUNTS FOR APPROVAL: None

APPLICATIONS.:
Consent Applications: B-032/25 & B-033/25: Plan M632, Lot 10 — 123E Nicolia Drive - Hodge  (7)

Site Plan Application: Plan M675, Lot 9 — Millie’s Way — Chauhan (8)
Site Plan Application: Conc. 5, Part Lot 17 — 943 Relative Road — Bowering (9)
Site Plan Application: Conc. 5, Part Lot 11 — 39 Mag View Drive — Baker (20)
BY-LAW(S):

By-law #47-2025 — To enter into a site plan agreement — 39 Mag View Drive — Baker (11)
By-law #48-2025 — To enter into a site plan agreement — 868 Skyline Drive — Johnstone (12)
REPORTS:

TRI Council Informal Sub-Committee — Meeting Minutes of July 2, 2025 (13)
ACED Request for Support In Principle — Signage Plan Applications (resolution) (24)
Mayor’'s Report: Preparing for the Future of Almaguin Highlands — 6 month summary (15)
MAHC — Political Leaders Forum Meeting Minutes of July 10, 2025 (16)

Library Board — Meeting of July 16, 2025
Agricultural Society — Meeting of July 17, 2025
Historical Society — Meeting of July 21, 2025
Any other reports?

CORRESPONDENCE: #17 TO #25

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None

NEW BUSINESS:

Invitation — Live Fire Unit Tour (26)
Invitation — 2025 Northeastern Municipal Council Workshop (27)
TRI Council — Request for agenda items

ADJOURNMENT:

DATES TO REMEMBER:

July 23, 2025 — Planning Board Meeting

July 24, 2025 — ACED Board Meeting

July 31, 2025 — Live Fire Unit Tour for Council Members
August 4, 2025 — Civic Holiday — Office Closed, Landfill Open
August 12, 2025 — Regular Council Meeting Civic Hetiday

Any member of the public who wishes to attend the virtual Council meeting may contact the
Clerk by 4:00 pm on Tuesday, July 22, 2025 via telephone at 705-382-3332 or by email at
clerk@armourtownship.ca



mailto:clerk@armourtownship.ca

THE _UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHI OF AR _OUR

PUBLIC _EETING _INUTES

Jul 8, 2025

Participants were informed that the meeting will be recorded to provide a record of
discussions and agreements held within the meeting. By staying in the meeting,
virtually or in-person, participants consented to being recorded. Participants also
agreed to recordings being posted to YouTube or other dis ribution services.

Council acknowledged the traditional lands of the Anishinaabe and recognized the
historical and contemporary contributions of the local First Nations and the peoples
of Turtle Island.

The Council of the Corporation of the Township of Armour held a hybrid public
meeting on Tuesday, July 8, 2025 at 6:30 p.m., in the Armour Township Council
Chambers to consider an amendment to By-Law #27-95, as amended, the Armour
Township Comprehensive Zoning.

Those in attendance were: Mayor Rod Ward; Councillors Jerry Bra dt, Dorothy
Haggart-Davis, Wendy Whitwell, and Rod Blakelock; S aff: Dave Gray, CAO,
Charlene Watt, Clerk, Kaiyla Hoffmann, Building/Planning — Administrative
Assistant.

This public meeting is with respect to consideration of the proposed Zoning By-Law
amendment under Section 34 of the Planning Act to amend by By-Law No. 27-95,
as amended. The purpose of this By-law is to remove the restriction on a single
detached dwelling being not permitted as an accessory use to a large number of
permitted uses in the Rural Industrial M Zone of the Armour Township Zoning By-
law. This By-law applies to permitted uses in the Rural Industrial M Zone of the
Armour Township Zoning By-law with the exception of financial institutions,
firehall/police station/ambulance, institutional uses, public u ilities yard or any public
agency building. This Zoning By-law Amendment conforms with the Armour Official
Plan and creates no changes to the land use mapping des'gnations. Notice of the
public meeting was given by prepaid first class mail on June 11, 2025 to the
ministries and agencies as required by the Planning Act. Notice was also published
in the digital Almaguin News for one month, on June 12, 2025 and on the Township
of Armour website.

No written submissions were received.

No one spoke in support of the amendment.
No one spoke in opposition to the amendment.
No questions were asked.

Council will consider all the comments from the public in attendance before making
a decision.

The public meeting for the proposed zoning by-law amendment to amend the zoning
by-law to remove restrictions on a Single Detached Dwelling being not permitted as
an accessory use to a large number of permitted uses in the Rural Industrial M Zone,
to the Armour Township comprehensive Zoning By-law adjourned at 6:34 p.m.

Rod Ward, Mayor

Charlene Watt, Clerk



THE UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF AR UR

PUBLIC MEETING INUTES

July 8, 2025

Participants were informed that the meeting will be recorded to provide a record of
discussions and agreements held within the meeting. By staying in the meeting,
virtually or in-person, participants consented to being recorded. Parti ipants also
agreed to recordings being posted to YouTube or other distribution se ices.

Council acknowledged the traditional lands of the Anishinaabe and recognized the
historical and contemporary contributions of the local First Nations and the peoples
of Turtle Island.

The Council of the Corporation of the Township of Armour held a h brid public
meeting on Tuesday, July 8, 2025 at 6:45 p.m., in the Armour Town hip Council
Chambers to consider an amendment to By-Law #27-95, as amended, the Armour
Township Comprehensive Zoning.

Those in attendance were: Mayor Rod Ward; Councillors Jerry Bra dt, Dorothy
Haggart-Davis, Wendy Whitwell, and Rod Blakelock; Guests: Marina Hammond;
Staff: Dave Gray, CAO, Charlene Watt, Clerk, Kaiyla Hoffmann, Buildi g/Planning
— Administrative Assistant.

This public meeting is with respect to consideration of the proposed Zoning By-Law
amendment under Section 34 of the Planning Act to amend by By-La No. 27-95,
as amended. The purpose of this By-law is to loosen restri tions on the permitted
uses of lands zoned Commercial Holding / Rural Industrial Holding (CH MH) without
removing the Holding (H) symbol, thereby retaining the designation f long term
employment lands fronting no load limit roads as a commercial red velopment
corridor. This By-law applies to lands in the Commercial Holding / Rur | Industrial
Holding (CH MH) Zone of the Armour Township Zoning By-law. This Zoning By-law
Amendment conforms with the Armour Official Plan and creates no ch nges to the
land use mapping. Notice of the public meeting was given by prepaid fir t class mail
on June 6, 2025 to the ministries and agencies as required by the P anning Act.
Notice was also published in the digital Almaguin News for one month, on June 7,
2025 and on the Township of Armour website.

No written submissions were received.

Marina Hammond spoke in support of the amendment.
No one spoke in opposition to the amendment.
Questions were asked and answered.

Council will consider all the comments from the public in attendance be ore making
a decision.

The public meeting for the proposed zoning by-law amendment to amend the zoning
by-law to add a selection of additional permitted uses on lands zoned Commercial
Holding / Rural Industrial Holding (CH MH) without removal of the olding (H)
Symbol, to the Armour Township comprehensive Zoning By-law adjourned at 6:49
p.m.

Rod Ward, Mayor

Charlene Watt, Clerk



©)

THE _UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF RMOUR

MINUTES
July 8, 2025

The regular meeting of the Council of the Township of Armour was held on Tuesday,
July 8, 2025 at 7:00 p.m. Those in attendance were: Mayor Rod Ward; Councillors Rod
Blakelock, Wendy Whitwell, Dorothy Haggart-Davis and Jerry Brandt; Delegations: Joe
Readman, Fire Chief, Amy Tilley, Waste Administrat r, Dave Creasor, Roads
Supervisor, Nell Thomas, and Lanny Dennis; Guests: Al'ce Hewitt, Nieves Guijarro,
Rowan Hildebrand and Don Murphy; Staff: Dave Gray, CAO and Charlene Watt,
Municipal Clerk.

VIDEO RECORDING DISCLAI ER:

Participants were informed that the meeting will be reco ded to provide a record of
discussions and agreements held within the meeting. By staying in the meeting,
virtually or in-person, participants consented to being recorded. Participants also
agreed to recordings being posted to YouTube or other distribution services.

INDIGENOUS LAND ACKNOWLEDGE ENT:

Council acknowledged the traditional lands of the Anishinaabe and recognized the
historical and contemporary contributions of the local First Nations and the peoples of
Turtle Island.

AMENDED AGENDA:

Council passed a resolution approving the amended agenda for the meeting to include
a staff report recommending the emergency replacement of the municipal office’s
septic system.

CONFIR ATION OF THE _INUTES OF THE PREVIOUS _EETINGS:

The minutes of the regular Council meeting held on June 24, 2025 was approved as
circulated.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE THEREOF:

No pecuniary interest and general nature thereof were declared.
DELEGATIONS:

Joe Readman, Fire Chief discussed Council's tabled resolution #194 requesting
support from the Township of Black River-Matheson. The Chief did not support the
exemption from the proposed mandatory firefighter certification requirements under
Ontario Regulation 343/22. Mandatory certification promotes accountability, reduces
risk, and aligns training across departments, ensuring all firefighters meet a common
benchmark regardless of municipality size or resources. Supporting the regulation also
demonstrates the fire department’s commitment to public and firefighter safety, as well
as to building trust and credibility with the community and governing bodies. The Fire
Chief supports the regulation and the level of training requirements. he Burk’s Falls
Firefighters have met the certification requirements. Council did not p ss a supporting
resolution.

Mayor Rod Ward commended the Roads Department and Staff on the response and
dedication to addressing the emergency stormwater response. Dave reasor, Roads
Supervisor, presented his July 2025 report which detailed equipment usage and
maintenance summaries. The trailer and solar radar speed sign were installed along
Doe Lake Road as a traffic calming measure. A status update was given on the
stormwater damage from the July 6, 2025 storm. A Significant Weather Event was
declared today in response to extreme rainfall and stormwater flooding. The
declaration is being made in accordance with Ontario Regulation 239/ 2 and filed with
the appropriate provincial ministries. At this time water levels are co tinuing to rise.
North Pickerel Lake rose approximately 3 feet today. Repairs to municipal roads and
resident driveways will take weeks. Residents have been asked to contact their
insurance company regarding damages; details of a claim must be in w iting. The storm
would have delayed the North Pickerel Lake Road Bridge replacement until early
September. Questions were asked and answered.

Page 1 of 8



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF AR_OUR

MINUTES
July 8, 2025

DELEGATIONS: cont'd:

Council reviewed a report from the Roads Supervisor regarding the tender issued by
the Township for Micro Surfacing of specific roads. Afte some discussion, Council
passed a resolution awarding the contract.

Council reviewed a report from the Roads Supervisor regarding the t nder issued by
the Township for Gravel of specific roads. After some discussion, Council passed a
resolution awarding the contract.

Council reviewed a report from the Roads Supervisor regarding the t nder issued by
the Township for Winter Sand. After some discussion, Council passed a resolution
awarding the contract.

Nell Thomas, daughter of Richard Thomas and Jenny Thomas prese ted to Council a
request to place a memorial plaque at the Richard Thomas Memorial Park. Council
passed a resolution approving the request with conditions.

Lanny Dennis from Lanny Dennis Planning spoke on behalf of Jamey Prentice and
presented concerns over the Council resolution #189 detailing conditions for the
Prentice Subdivision S-01/24. Two pre-consultation meetings were held and supported
the proposed 15 lots, there was no mention on reducing the number of lots to the 1995
OMB order. Council expressed concern in development of the wetlands over time,
specifically on lots 13-15. It was agreed that the Planning Board must enforce the
wetlands protection in the subdivision agreement. Two reports f om Riverstone
Environmental Solutions and a revised draft survey were presented and reviewed. The
reports addressed the environmental impacts and provi ed recommendations. The
Municipal Planner’s concern of confirmed deer habitat on Lots 1-5 and the already
reduced frontage from 120 metres to 90 metres in the environmental protection area
through the OMB Order and a further requested reduction requires MNRF input.
Council passed a resolution amending the conditions and rescinded resolution #189
dated June 24, 2025.

Don Murphy advised he is supportive of condition #3 regarding the winter deer habitat
requirement but not dwellings on lots 13 to 15 with the wetlands.

Amy Tilley, Waste Management Administrator, presented her July 2025 report which
detailed the monthly bag counts for 2025 with comparisons to previous years and an
up-to-date budget. A change notice for the Depot Operations Agreement Number
2024-00-142 from Circular Materials Ontario was reviewed. Council passed a
resolution opposing the amendments and directed staff to ne otiate revised
compensation terms that reflect fair and equitable remuneration for the Township’s
continued provision of depot and promotion and education services. uestions were
asked and answered. As for the current flood situation on Pickerel L ke and area, a
review of the 2019 flood file regarding property damage and the handling of waste will
be reviewed and a plan will be communicated to property owners withi the Township.

Amy Tilley, CEMC provided a verbal update on the completion of the emergency
management compliance reporting for the Municipality.

ACCOUNTS FOR APPROVAL:

The list of accounts for July 2025 was approved by resolut'on.

APPLICATIONS:

Council reviewed an application for a site plan agreement from William Johnstone, 868
Skyline Drive, Plan M237, Lot 24. Council passed a resolution accepting the
application and requested the municipal planner proceed with drafting the site plan
agreement.

Page 2 of 8



THE _UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

MINUTES
July , 2025

BY-LAWS:

By-law #43-2025 being a by-law to amend zoning by-law 27-95 to permit additional
uses on lands zoned Commercial Holding / Rural Industrial Holding (CH/MH) without
removing the Holding (H) symbol was read in its entirety and passed by resolution.

By-law #44-2025 being a by-law to amend zoning by-law 27-95 to remove the
restriction on a single detached dwelling of not being permitted as an accessory use to
permitted uses in the Rural Industrial M Zone was read in its entirety and passed by
resolution.

By-law #45-2025 being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council at its June
meetings was read in its entirety and passed by resolution.

By-law #46-2025 being a by-law to enter into a site plan agreement with Laura Glen
Sclater, Heather Elizabeth Gray, David Austen Gray and Michael Alan Gray,
Concession 3, Part Lot 1, 42R-10213 Part 7 and 42R22771 Part 1, described as 98
Doe Lake Peninsula was read in its entirety and passed by resolution.

REPORTS:

Council reviewed the July 2025 Planning Report.

Council reviewed the July 2025 Building Permit Report.

Council reviewed the Heritage Festival 2025 Report from the Recreation Co-ordinator.
Council reviewed the Township’s Financial Statement dated July 3, 2025.

A verbal report was given on the June 25, 2025 Planning Board meeting. An intern is
being interviewed to assist the Secretary.

Council reviewed the June 2025 statements from the East olme Hom for the Aged.

Council reviewed the report on the June 24, 2025 Library Building Committee meeting.
The Armour CAO will obtain an estimated cost for architectural and engineering
services to support the development of an RFP. A project specific ag eement is to be
drafted between the TRI partners

Council reviewed the Director’'s Report, Student Engagement Reporta d minutes from
the ACED June 26, 2025 meeting. A report regarding the percentage-of-tax-levy
contribution model was presented to the ACED Board at the June 26, 2025 ACED
Board Meeting. Council reviewed the ACED resolution accepting the report and
requesting that it be circulated to all councils and the Aimaguin Highlands Chamber of
Commerce for inclusion in their upcoming council meetings. The Board welcomes
questions and comments from municipalities regarding ACED membership and the
contribution concept. The Board advised that they are in the process of creating a new
shared services agreement to begin in 2026. Council was supportive of the proposed
contribution concept and the need for a regional approach to ACED.

A verbal update was provided on the July 2, 2025 TRI Council Sub Committee meeting.
A lot of productive communications were conducted. The focus of the meeting was on
the library. It was mentioned by Council that the upstairs of the current| cation be used
to assist with additional programming. Clauses for a draft library agreement were
discussed with recommendations.

A verbal report was given on the July 3, 2025 AHHC meeting. The n xt meeting will
be in September.

There is no DSSAB meeting in July.

Page 3 of 8



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF AR OUR

INUTES
July 8, 2025

CORRESPONDENCE:

Council reviewed a donation request from Almaguin Pride Network and details on their
community impact and the 2025 events/initiatives. Council passed a resolution
approving a donation.

Council reviewed a donation request from Karis Disability Services and an invitation to
the community BBQ. Council passed a resolution approving a donati n.

Council reviewed a news release from Ontario News advising the Province is
protecting workers and jobs in rural communities and accepting applications for the
Rural Ontario Development Program.

Council reviewed a news release from Muskoka Algonquin Healthcare recognizing the
recipients of the 18" annual Board Award of Excellence.

Council reviewed a news release from Ontario News advising the Province is reducing
wait times for MRlIs, CT scans and endoscopies.

Council reviewed a news release from Ontario News advising the Pro ince is acting to
restore school board financial stability and has appointed four supervisors to four
school boards to ensure every dollar spent is invested in students’ success.

Council reviewed a news release from Ontario News advising the Province is taking
action to make conservation authorities more effective.

Council reviewed a memorandum from the Office of the Registrar General advising
that the effective July 1, 2025, that the Province has expanded the scopes of practice
for nurse practitioners and registered nurses to allow them to certify deaths and signing
medical certificates of death in specific situations.

Council reviewed the May 2025 monthly jobs report and the June 2025 Labour Focus
report from the Labour Market Group.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

Council reviewed a resolution from the Township of Ryerson accepting the request for
proposal from Domm Construction for the design and build for the new fire hall in the
amount of $3,634,900.50 + HST subject to receiving supporting resolutions from the
TRI partners. Council passed a supporting resolution.

Council reviewed a resolution from the Township of Ryerson supporting the application
under the NOHFC’s Community Enhancement Program for the new fire hall build
project and the commitment to cover their share of the project, along with any project
cost overruns. Council passed a resolution supporting the program and committed to
financing their share of the project as well.

NEW BUSINESS:

Council reviewed a staff report concerning the emergenc replacement of the septic
system at the municipal office. Council members posed se eral questions, which were
addressed during the discussion. Staff was advised to ensure that the contractor
exercises caution around the heat lines connected to the ground source heating
system. Following the discussion, Council passed a resolution approving the
replacement of the septic system.

CLOSED SESSION:

The purpose of the closed meeting under Section 239(2) (c) of the Municipal Act to
discuss a proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality or
local board.

A resolution was passed to move into closed session at 10:13 p.m.

Page 4 of 8



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

INUTES
July 8, 2025

CLOSED SESSION: cont’d:

A resolution was passed to move out of the closed session at 10:30 p.m. The Mayor
reported on the items that were discussed in the closed session.

RESOLUTIONS:

Resolution #207a - Moved by Jerry Brandt, seconded by Rod Blakelock; That the
Council of the Township of Armour approve the amended agenda for the July 8, 2025
Council Meeting to include a Staff Report regarding the emergency replacement of the
septic system at the municipal office. Carried

Resolution #207 - Moved by Dorothy Haggart-Davis, seconded by Rod Blakelock; That
the Council of the Township of Armour approve the minutes of the regular council
meeting held on June 24, 2025 as circulated. Carried

Resolution #194 - Moved by Dorothy Haggart-Davis, seconded by Jerry Brandt; That
the Council of the Township of Armour supports the Township of Black River-Matheson
and opposes the mandatory firefighter certification requirements as currently outlined
in Ontario Regulation 343/22. Defeated

Recorded Vote:

Councillor Jerry Brandt - Opposed
Councillor Wendy Whitwell - Opposed
Councillor Rod Blakelock - Opposed
Councillor Dorothy Haggart-Davis - Opposed
Mayor Rod Ward - Opposed

Resolution #209 - Moved by Wendy Whitwell, seconded by Jerry Brandt; That the Staff
Report from the Roads Supervisor dated July 8, 2025, regarding Tender #RDS 2025-
02 for Micro-Surfacing be received and that Council award the co tract to Duncor
Enterprises Inc., for a tender price of $126,360 plus HST. Carried

Resolution #210 - Moved by Dorothy Haggart-Davis, seconded by Rod Blakelock; That
the Staff Report from the Roads Supervisor dated July 8, 2025, regarding Tender
#RDS 2025-03 for Gravel be received and that Council award the contract to Fowler
Construction Company Ltd., for a tender price of $100,873 plus HST. arried

Resolution #211 - Moved by Rod Blakelock, seconded by Wendy Whitwell; That the
Staff Report from the Roads Supervisor dated July 8, 20 5, regarding Tender #RDS
2025-04 for Winter Sand be received and that Council award the contract to A. Miron
Topsoil Ltd., for a tender price of $42,250 plus HST. Carried

Resolution #212 - Moved by Jerry Brandt, seconded by Wendy Whitwell; That the
Council of the Township of Armour hereby grants permission to Dr. Nell Thomas and
her family to install a memorial stone at Richard Thomas Memorial Park that
commemorates Richard Thomas (1932-2006) and Jenny Thomas (1932-2024),
measuring approximately 2 feet wide and 2 inches thick at a suitable | cation near the
water's edge and that does not interfere with public use or access, subject to site
approval by the Roads Supervisor. Carried

Resolution #213 - Moved by Dorothy Haggart-Davis, seconded by Rod Blakelock; That
the Council of the Township of Armour rescind resolution #189 dated June 24, 2025
and support in principle, the subdivision application submitted by Ralph Prentice, No.
S-01/24, Concessions 1 & 2, Lot 23, subject to the following:

e That the subdivision plan confirms that all proposed lots meet the Armour
Township Zoning By-law Definition of “Lot Area” m aning “the total horizontal
area within the lot lines of a lot but shall not include any area below the high
water mark,” each having a minimum area of 2 acres (0.80 ha.) but not
constituting “development or site alteration of Adjacent Lands o Fish Habitat”
as per Section 4.1.8 of the Provincial Planning Statement 2024 PPS) or involve

Page 5 of 8



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF AR OUR

INUTES
July , 2025

RESOLUTIONS: cont'd:

Wetlands as also regulated and defined therein, to the satisfaction of the
municipality.

That the applicant convey the required cash in lieu of parkland dedication to the
Township of Armour as per the current by-law.

That the applicant provide written evidence from the MNRF confirming that Lots
1 — 5 are not a confirmed deer habitat to allow for a reduced minimum frontage
of 120 metres to 61-70 metres. Upon confirmation from the MNRF, that a zoning
by-law amendment be applied for and received which recognizes a minimum lot
frontage for proposed Lots 1 — 5 requires variations in the minimum lot frontage
requirement for winter deer habitat.

That a zoning by-law amendment be applied for and received to rezone the
proposed lots to Lakeshore Residential (LR) Zone, Flood Plai (FP) Zone and
Wetlands Protection Zone to allow residential uses on a year-r und basis.

That the lands identified as “additional lands owned by applicant” be merged
with lands to the north and a zoning by-law amendment be applied for and
received to prevent any future residential development or further land division.

That the owner shall give special attention to the drainage of storm water away
from its proposed outlet onto Cherry Hill, a municipal road, at its intersection
with the condominium road. The owner shall design and financ the entire cost
to the Township of Armour for the installation of storm water drainage facilities
if required, from the condominium road intersection.

That the owner shall agree to the provision of wording in the subdivision
agreement verifying that the entire property is subject to Site Plan control and
that the Township of Armour shall require future site plan control applications
for all proposed development within the boundaries of the plan of subdivision.

That the final development agreement includes topography and location of
proposed wooded areas, flood plain areas, protected wetlands areas and the
proposed building envelopes.

That a 0.3-metre (one-foot) reserve be established along the limits of Blocks 16
and 17 where they abut the adjacent "additional" lands, as well as across the
road stub in Block 16 extending beyond the cul-de-sac and approaching Nulty
Lane, which is privately owned but not in the name of the applicant. The reserve
shall be conveyed to the appropriate authority to prevent unauthorized access
and to control future road connections, to the satisfaction of the Township.

That the proponent is responsible for all costs incurred by t e Township of
Armour, including legal, engineering, surveying and planning consultant fees for
completing the subdivision and common element condominium agreements.
Carried

Resolution #208 - Moved by Rod Blakelock, seconded by Jerry Brandt; WHEREAS
Circular Materials Ontario (CMO) has issued a Change Notice proposing amendments
to the Depot Operations Agreement No. 2024-00-142, including signifi ant changes to
the compensation structure effective January 1, 2026;

AND WHEREAS the proposed amendments include a reduction in Residential Depot
Operation Costs from $4,080 to $1,223, and a reduction in Promotion and Education
compensation from $1.00 to $0.35 per household, representing a 65% decrease;

AND WHEREAS Council for the Township of Armour considers hese proposed
reductions in compensation to be unreasonable and not reflective of the actual costs
and responsibilities borne by the Township in providing these service ;

Page 6 of 8



THE __UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF AR OUR

INUTES
July 8, 2025

RESOLUTIONS: cont’d:

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of Armour
does not accept the proposed reductions in compensation under the Change Notice
issued by CMO dated June 27, 2025;

AND FURTHER THAT Township staff be directed to communicate Council’s position
to Circular Materials Ontario and to negotiate revised compensation terms that reflect
fair and equitable remuneration for the Township’s continued provision of depot and
promotion and education services. Carried

Resolution #214 - Moved by Rod Blakelock, seconded by Dorothy Haggart-Davis; That
the Council of the Township of Armour approve the July 2025 accounts, in the amount
of $866,229.96 for payment, and the Mayor and the Treasurer are hereby authorized
to sign cheques for same. Carried

Resolution #215 - Moved by Jerry Brandt, seconded by Wendy Whitwell; That the
Council of the Township of Armour accept the application for site plan approval,
submitted by William Robert Charles Johnstone, Plan #M237, Lot 24, described as 868
Skyline Drive, and request the municipal planner proceed with drafting the site plan
agreement. Carried

Resolution #216 - Moved by Dorothy Haggart-Davis, sec nded by Jerry Brandt; That
the Council of the Township of Armour approve By-law #43-2025 being a by-law to
permit additional uses on lands zoned Commercial Holding / Rural Industrial Holding
(CH/MH) without removing the Holding (H) symbol, thereby retaining the designation
of long-term employment lands fronting no load limit roads as a commercial
redevelopment corridor and that we authorize the Mayor and Clerk to sign this by-law
and affix the seal of the Corporation thereto. Carried

Resolution #217 - Moved by Rod Blakelock, seconded by Dorothy Hag art-Davis; That
the Council of the Township of Armour approve By-law #44-2025 being a by-law to
remove the restriction on a single detached dwelling of not being permitted as an
accessory use to permitted uses in the Rural Industrial M Zone and that we authorize
the Mayor and Clerk to sign this by-law and affix the seal of the Corporation thereto.
Carried

Resolution #218 - Moved by Wendy Whitwell, seconded by Dorothy Haggart-Davis;
That the Council of the Township of Armour approve By-law #45-2025 being a by-law
to confirm the proceedings of Council at its June meetings and that we authorize the
Mayor and Clerk to sign this by-law and affix the seal of the Corporation thereto.
Carried

Resolution #219 - Moved by Jerry Brandt, seconded by Wendy Whitwell; That the
Council of the Township of Armour have read and approv By-law #46-2025 being a
by-law to enter into a site plan agreement with Laura Glen Sclater, H ather Elizabeth
Gray, David Austen Gray and Michael Alan Gray, Concession 3, Part Lot 1, 42R-10213
Part 7 and 42R-22771 Part 1, described as 98 Doe Lake Peninsula in the Township of
Armour and that we authorize the Mayor and the Clerk to sign this by-law and affix the
Seal of the Corporation thereto. Carried

Resolution #220 - Moved by Dorothy Haggart-Davis, seconded by Wendy Whitwell;
That the Council of the Township of Armour approve a donation, in the amount of $500
to Almaguin Pride to support the events they wish to hold in our region in 2025. Carried

Resolution #221 - Moved by Rod Blakelock, seconded by Jerry Brandt; That the
Council of the Township of Armour approve a donation, in the amount of $250 to Karis
Disability Services to support the events they are hosting to provide supports for
vulnerable people within our area. Carried

Resolution #222 - Moved by Jerry Brandt, seconded by Dorothy Haggart-Davis; That
the Council of the Township of Armour supports the Towns ip of Ryerson’s acceptance
of the request for proposal 2025-007 for the design and build for the new firehall from
DOMM Construction in the amount of $3,634,900.50 plus HST. Carrie

Page 7 of 8



THE _UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF AR OUR

INUTES
July 8, 2025

RESOLUTIONS: cont’d:

Resolution #223 - Moved by Rod Blakelock, seconded by Jerry Brandt; That the
Council of the Township of Armour supports the Towns ip of Ryerson’s application
under the NOHFC’s Community Enhancement Program for the Burk’s Falls and District
Fire Hall Project;

Furthermore, the minimum bid was submitted in the amount of $3,698,874.75. Should
the Township of Ryerson be successful in securing a grant of $1,849,437.38, the
Township of Armour is committed to providing its share of funding for the project,
estimated at $884,770.84, as well as covering any potential cost overruns that may
arise. Carried

Resolution #228 - Moved by Rod Blakelock, seconded by Dorothy Haggart-Davis;
WHEREAS the septic system at the Armour Township Municipal Office, located at 56
Ontario Street, has been identified as failing and in urgent need of replacement; and

WHEREAS the failure of the system poses an immediate risk of disrup ion to municipal
operations and may result in further damage to municipal property; and

WHEREAS the anticipated cost of the emergency replacement is exp cted to exceed
$35,000; and

WHEREAS the Township of Armour's Procurement Policy permits emergency
expenditures in circumstances where immediate action is required to prevent damage
to property and maintain essential services;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of Armour
hereby authorizes the emergency replacement of the septic system at 56 Ontario
Street in accordance with the Township's Procurement Policy; and

FURTHER THAT the necessary funds be allocated for this purpose from the
appropriate budget line or reserves as determined by the Treasurer. Carried

Resolution #224 - Moved by Dorothy Haggart-Davis, seconded by Jerry Brandt; That
Council of the Township of Armour hereby move into a closed session a 10:13 p.m. as
per Section 239(2) (c) of the Municipal Act to discuss a proposed or pe ding acquisition
or disposition of land by the municipality or board. Carried

Resolution # 226 — Moved by Dorothy Haggart-Davis, seconded by Wendy Whitwell;
That the Council of the Township of Armour hereby adjourn and mo e out of closed
session at 10:30 p.m. and report. Carried

Resolution #227 - Moved by Rod Blakelock, seconded by Wendy Whitwell; That the
Council of the Township of Armour adjourn this regular co ncil meeting at 10:31 p.m.
until the next regular council meeting scheduled for July 22, 2025 or at the call of the
Mayor or the Clerk. Carried

Rod Ward, Mayor

Charlene Watt, Clerk

Page 8 of 8



LIST OF PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS FOR JULY 22, 2025 @

ITEM # ON AGENDA (1)

That the Council of the Township of Armour approve the minutes of the zoning by-law amendment
public meeting to amend permitted uses in the M Zone held on July 8, 2025 as circulated.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (2)

That the Council of the Township of Armour approve the minutes of the zoning by-law amendment
public meeting to amend permitted uses in the CH/MH Zone held on July 8, 2025 as circulated.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (3)

That the Council of the Township of Armour approve the minutes of the regular council meeting held
on July 8, 2025 as circulated.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (6)

That the Council of the Township of Armour hereby support and directs that a formal request be
submitted to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing to delegate authority to the Municipal
Corporation of the Township of Armour under the Building Code Act for the administration and
enforcement of the Ontario Building Code, specifically as it relates to sewage systems for all properties
within the Township of Armour;

And That Council confirms the Township of Armour has fully qualified and capable municipal staff to
undertake and fulfill the responsibilities of this delegated authority.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (7)
That the Council of the Township of Armour hereby support the severance applications B-032/25 & B-

033/25, Part Lot 22, Concession 10, Plan M632, Lot 10, 123 E Nicolia Drive submitted by Richard
Hodge subject to the following conditions:

. That the applicant convey the required cash in lieu of parkland dedication to the Township of
Armour as per the current by-law.

. That, should consent approval for the retained parcel be requested by the applicant, whether
upon application or by amendment to the conditions/approval, then the requirement for cash-in-lieu
shall apply to the retained parcel as well.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (8)

That the Council of the Township of Armour accept the application for site plan approval, submitted by
Pavitar Preet Singh Chauhan, Plan #M675, Lot 9, fronting onto Millie’s Way, and request the municipal
planner proceed with drafting the site plan agreement.

ITEM # ON AGENDA 9)

That the Council of the Township of Armour accept the application for site plan approval, submitted by
Daniel Bowering and Lesley Kataric, Concession 5, Part Lot 17, known municipally as 943 Relative
Road, and request the municipal planner proceed with drafting the site plan agreement.

Page1of3



ITEM # ON AGENDA (10)

That the Council of the Township of Armour accept the application for site plan approval, submitted by
Jeffrey Baker, Concession 5, Part Lot 11, known municipally as 39 Mag View Drive, and request the
municipal planner proceed with drafting the site plan agreement.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (11)

That the Council of the Township of Armour have read and approve By-law #47-2025 being a by-law
to enter into a site plan agreement with Jeffrey Baker with respect to Part of Lot 11, Concession 5
fronting on the Magnetawan River and that we authorize the Mayor and Clerk to sign this by-law and
affix the seal of the Corporation thereto.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (12)

That the Council of the Township of Armour have read and approve By-law #48-2025 being a by-law
to enter into a site plan agreement with William Robert Charles Johnstone with respect to Lot 24 of
Plan M237; Part of Road Allowance in Front of Part Lot 21 Concession 4 Armour Part 10 42R-7266;
known municipally as 868 Skyline Drive on the east shore of Three Mile Lake and that we authorize
the Mayor and Clerk to sign this by-law and affix the seal of the Corporation thereto.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (14)

WHEREAS The Township of Armour has adopted and supported the implementation of the 2018
Almaguin Highlands Regional Economic Development Strategic Plan and the 2021 Almaguin Brand
Strategy which call for the establishment of a unified regional brand;

AND WHEREAS The Township of Armour recognizes the importance of aligning physical and digital
elements within the collective brand strategy throughout the Almaguin Highlands Region as well as
the efforts of the ACED to implement the Brand Strategy;

AND WHEREAS the ACED Brand Alignment & Regional Signage Project will enhance the use of the
regional brand while promoting recreational, tourism, and business activity throughout the region;

AND WHEREAS the ACED Members’ contribution to the project shall be funded through the ACED
reserve;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of Armour herby declare
their support in principle for the ACED Brand Alignment & Regional Signage Project as well as
associated applications for financial assistance to complete the project.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (17)

WHEREAS the Northern Ontario Resource Development Support (NORDS) pilot program was
introduced to help Northern Ontario municipalities address infrastructure pressures resulting from
natural resource sector activities;

AND WHEREAS the funding provided through the NORDS pilot was very well received by the
municipal sector, as it delivered timely and much-needed financial support to many communities
across the North;

AND WHEREAS the program has allowed municipalities, such as the City of North Bay, to strategically
stack multi-year allocations in order to support large-scale infrastructure initiatives critical to community
development and economic growth;

Page 2 of 3



AND WHEREAS the NORDS pilot program has clearly demonstrated its value and effectiveness in
helping Northern municipalities address the infrastructure challenges tied to resource development
and extraction;

AND WHEREAS rural and northern municipalities are also facing infrastructure degradation resulting
from the increasing size and frequency of agricultural machinery and activity, which is currently outside
the scope of the pilot;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of Armour strongly urges the
Government of Ontario to make the Northern Ontario Resource Development Support (NORDS)
program a permanent fixture of its support to Northern municipalities;

AND FURTHER THAT the Province consider expanding program eligibility to recognize the significant
impact that agricultural equipment and operations have on municipal infrastructure, particularly in rural
communities.

AND FURTHER THAT municipalities be encouraged to continue utilizing the ability to stack NORDS
allocations over multiple years to support the planning and delivery of major infrastructure projects.

ITEM # ON AGENDA (18)

That the Council of the Township of Armour supports FONOM in urging both the Government of
Canada and the Government of Ontario to:

1. Make the resolution of the softwood lumber dispute a top priority in ongoing bilateral trade
discussions with the United States;

2. Work directly with forestry stakeholders and municipalities to develop and implement support
measures that protect workers, communities, and local economies;

3. Publicly acknowledge the urgency of this issue for rural and Northern Ontario and commit to
coordinated and concrete actions to support the forest sector.

ITEM # ON AGENDA

That the Council of the Township of Armour adjourns this regular council meeting at p.m.
until the next regular council meeting scheduled for August 12, 2025 or at the call of the Mayor or the
Clerk.

Page3of 3



STAFF REPORT

Date: July 15, 2025
To: Council
From: Danika McCann - Recreation Coordinator

Subject: July 2025

Summer Day Camp

Our summer day camp program has had a strong and successful start. We have 115
children registered, with only 34 of 1,110 available spots remaining—a clear sign of high
community interest.

We have been offering flexible options including full weeks or individual days, which has
proven extremely beneficial to families and has helped us maximize attendance while
staying within our daily limit of 30 participants.

Campers have enjoyed swimming lessons, outdoor activities, and weekly visits to
Crooked Creek Ranch. Our day camp staff have been outstanding, consistently
demonstrating attentiveness, good judgment, and excellent rapport with the children.

Day Camp Booking Status (Out of 1110 Spots)

Status
am Taken
Bl Available




Family Baseball Tournament

This year’s tournament was a great success, with 8 teams participating in a fun and
community-driven weekend. Congratulations to the Rodgers team for winning first
place, and to the Leggetts for taking second.

We are currently exploring two enhancements for future tournaments:

» Allowing a local food vendor (for a $200 fee) to help reduce staffing costs.
» Hosting a Friday night dance before the tournament to raise funds for field im-
provements.

F|tness Class<e’s:’

Fitness classes have been paused for July and August due to a seasonal dip in
attendance. We plan to resume programming September through December and will
monitor participation for future planning.

Cbmhole Leag ue
Our Fall Cornhole League was very popular, with weekly attendance ranging from 12 to
32 people. We discovered that broadcasting hockey games during sessions significantly
increased turnout, and we will continue to build on this success.

Due to its popularity, we will offer bi-annual sessions, with the next 10-week series
starting in mid-September.

Ga|a e

Gala planning is well underway. We have secured a caterer and are waiting on final DJ
pricing to finalize event costs.

We will be selling 108 tickets, with early-bird pricing launching in the last week of July.
Ticket prices will increase after the promotional period.




STAFF REPORT

Date: July 14, 2025
To: Council
From: Danika McCann - Recreation Coordinator

Subject: Heritage Festival

Recommendation:

o Purchase of 6 additional walkie talkies and 8 traffic cones to improve logistical
coordination and site safety.

» Strategic adjustments to event timing and layout to retain attendees for the full
event duration.

» Reallocation of the Historical Society donation tent and Sprinkler Run to higher-
traffic zones of the fairgrounds.

» Re-evaluation of underused services, such as shuttle transportation and large-
scale water delivery.

» Improved live performance scheduling for live entertainment to better align with
the festival's peak periods.

The Heritage Festival is a cornerstone annual event in the Township of Armour,
traditionally held in July at the Armour, Ryerson & Burk’s Falls Agricultural Fairgrounds.
It celebrates our local heritage through a mix of entertainment, classic vehicle displays
local vendors, family-friendly attractions, and community partners.

The 2025 Heritage Festival was hosted amid significant weather-related challenges,
with over 16 inches of rain recorded in the days leading up to the event. Despite these
conditions, staff successfully managed the grounds by barricading off compromised
areas and adjusting the site layout accordingly.

Community participation remained strong and the introduction of new logistics and
programming enhancements resulted in overwhelmingly positive feedback from
attendees, vendors, and partners.




Event Summary:
Car Show:

o 87 cars arrived and participated in the show.

» 81 vehicles were pre-registered, and of those, approximately 6 emailed to cancel
due to concerns about weather and travel safety.

+ A new traffic flow plan directed car show patrticipants through the arena entrance
rather than the lower field entrance. This change was positively received and
helped preserve the integrity of the field.

o Feedback from car owners was highly favorable, with many citing the ease of ac-
cess and better parking surfaces as major improvements from previous years.

Vendor Market:

o 85 vendors were registered.

e 62 vendors attended and set up their booths.

o 7 vendors formally canceled during the week of the event due to weather-related
issues.

+ 16 vendors were no-shows on the day of the event. Roughly two-thirds of these
provided advance notice, primarily citing the tornado warning/ rain in the region
as their reason for withdrawal.

o Despite these absences, vendor booths were well spaced, and the overall market
atmosphere was lively and well-trafficked.

Community Feedback & Highlights:
Use of the Fairgrounds:

o A major change this year was the full utilization of the fairgrounds for activities
and vendors. This reduced crowding, improved navigation, and created a more
immersive festival feel, while also allowing the flow of foot traffic to enhance the
vendors at the end of vendor rows sales.

» Vendors appreciated the generous spacing and ease of access. Visitors com-
mented positively on the improved event flow and ability to explore without con-
gestion.

Attractions and Programming:

» The Mechanical Bull and Petting Zoo were consistently cited as the most popular
attractions. :

o The Mechanical Bull, in particular, was praised for offering engaging enter-
tainment for older youth and adults, addressing previous feedback about
the lack of 12yrs+ activities.

» Families made great use of the Kids’ Zone, and children were engaged through-
out the day.




Event Infrastructure:

o The 20x40 tent near the stage was a major asset, offering much-needed shelter
from the blazing sun all day. It served as a central resting area and gathering
point for many families.

» The walkie talkies borrowed from the day camp program significantly improved
staff communication across the grounds.

o The donation of two side-by-sides by Rickwards Polaris proved invaluable for:

o Transporting supplies and staff
o Shuttling seniors and guests with mobility issues
o Providing quick response capability for any issues across the property

Promotion & Outreach:
When asked how they heard about the event, the most common responses were:

1. Local Radio ads
2. Returning visitors from previous years
3. Posts on local Buy & Sell Facebook pages

This confirms the effectiveness of traditional and grassroots promotional methods in
reaching our target audience.

Challenges & Operational Notes:
Shuttle Transportation:

o Only 11 people used the shuttle service throughout the day, despite promotion.

o Usage has been low for the second year in a row.

» Staff recommends reconsidering the shuttle offering in 2026, as it may not be
cost-effective or necessary given the event layout.

Water Distribution:

e Only 12 of 84 cases of bottled water were consumed.

» The process of acquiring, transporting, distributing, and recollecting the unused
cases over a two-day period is highly labor-intensive.

» Staff recommends re-evaluating the provision of free bottled water for the 2026
event, as it may no longer be cost-effective or necessary. Additionally, two ven-
dors noted that water sales are a key revenue source during hot weather, and
the availability of free water may negatively impact their business.

Historical Society Tent Location:

« lts current placement resulted in low foot traffic and visibility.
» In 2026, staff recommends moving the Historical Society closer to the top of the
track, where pedestrian traffic is highest upon entry.




Event Timing & Entertainment Scheduling:

« After the Fire Challenge concluded at 1:00 PM, a large portion of attendees be-
gan leaving the grounds.

o Similarly, following the Car Show Awards at 2:00 PM, many car owners and
spectators began to pack up.

o Although entertainment was contracted from 11:00 AM to 3:00 PM, the perfor-
mance window was limited to 12:17 PM to 2:04 PM due to the performer's late
arrival. This missed a key opportunity to retain the crowd into the final hour of the
event. Had the entertainment continued until at least 2:45 PM, it is likely that
more attendees would have remained on-site. Instead, once the performance
ended and the Car Show Awards concluded around 2:00 PM, many attendees
began to leave, and several vendors also started to pack up. This left the fair-
grounds feeling noticeably quieter from 2:00 PM to 3:00 PM, with only the vendor
row and Kids’ Zone still actively operating. Extending entertainment beyond the
awards ceremony in future years would help maintain energy and engagement
for families and visitors arriving later in the afternoon.

Sprinkler Run Placement:

o The Sprinkler Run remains a popular children’s activity, but its current location
receives less attention.

e Moving it to the mid-field near the tractor show will increase visibility and partici-
pation.

Fmanmal Céhs/iderat‘ibnsy.:y
Recommended Purchases for 2026:
e 6 Walkie Talkies: Estimated cost: $200
o Forimproved staff communication across the full grounds
o Traffic Cones: Estimated cost: $300
o To assist with vehicle control, safety barriers, and directing foot traffic
Cost-Saving Opportunities:
o Reassess the shuttle service, which had limited use and represents an unneces-
sary expenditure. (Approx. $700)
o Reassess bottled water and ice ordered (Approx. $400)

Entertainment Optimization:

o Ensure full delivery of contracted entertainment timeframes.
« Consider splitting sets into pre- and post-award segments to encourage at-
tendees to stay longer, maximizing value.




Conclusion:

The 2025 Heritage Festival was a successful and well-received community event, made
possible through the efforts of staff, volunteers, and community partners. Despite
inclement weather warning and a few operational challenges, feedback was
overwhelmingly positive, particularly regarding the event layout, attractions, and overall
atmosphere.

By implementing the suggested improvements—particularly in event flow, vendor
placement, and resource management—the Township will be well-positioned to build on
this year's success and deliver an even more efficient and engaging Heritage Festival in
2026, should Council choose to proceed with the event next year.




STAFF REPORT

Date: July 22, 2025
To: Council
From: Doug Godin, CBO

Subject: Building permit inspection results

Recommendation:
That the staff report from the CBO dated July 22, 2025 be received for informational
purposes.

Background:

In response to the Council discussion on July 8, 2025, please find below a summary of
the building permit report’s inspection listing details. Inspection failure reasons vary and
fall under specific categories which are not detailed on the public reports.

Reasons for Inspection Failures:

« Non-compliance with the Ontario Building Code (OBC).

e Missing documentation, e.g., ESA inspection report, engineer sign-off (Peng),
water test, HRV balancing report, WETT certification.

» Site notready, i.e., inspection booked before the site was prepared.

The department's goal is not to obstruct permit completion but to assist applicants in
achieving compliance with the Ontario Building Code and Applicable Law through the
inspection process.

Discussion:

Inspection Result Types:

Passed — Work complies with approved drawings and the OBC.
Inspection Not Complete — Used when inspections span multiple visits.

No Access to Site — Due to obstacles or weather.
Failed — Work does not meet OBC requirements or lacks required documents.

PON =




STAFF REPORT

Date: July 22, 2025
To: Council
From: Doug Godin, CBO

Subject: Septic System Authority

Resolution:

THAT the Council for the Township of Armour hereby supports and directs that a formal
request be submitted to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing to delegate authority
to the Corporation of the Township of Armour under the Building Code Act for the
administration and enforcement of the Ontario Building Code, specifically as it relates to
sewage systems for all properties within the Township of Armour;

AND THAT Council confirms the Township of Armour has fully qualified and capable
municipal staff to undertake and fulfill the responsibilities of this delegated authority.

Discussion:

In support of the Province’s mandate and in the interest of improving customer service,
reducing turnaround times, and supporting responsible growth, it is recommended that
the Township of Armour request delegated authority to manage sewage system
approvals internally under the Building Code Act.

Assuming this authority would provide the following benefits:

» Streamlined Permit Process: By consolidating sewage system approvals with
the Township’s Building Department, applicants will experience a more cohesive
and efficient permit process.

 Improved Customer Service: Direct access to local staff enhances
communication, consistency, and responsiveness.

» Costand Time Savings: Reducing the need for third-party coordination can lower
processing costs and shorten project timelines, thereby encouraging more timely
housing development.

» Alignment with Provincial Objectives: This change supports the intent of Bill 23
by removing barriers to building more homes, faster.

The Township of Armour has fully qualified and certified staff, including an experienced
Chief Building Official, who is capable of fulfilling the responsibilities associated with this

“KesoLuvTioN—




delegated authority. Necessary training and certifications under the Building Code Act
and Ontario Building Code Part 8 have been obtained and maintained by staff.

Financial Considerations:

While there may be modest initial administrative costs associated with transitioning the
authority in-house (such as updates to application forms, staff training refreshers, or
software adjustments), these are expected to be offset over time by greater operational
efficiency and potential increases in building activity.

Others Consulted:

CBO, Perry Township
MPP Graydon Smith, James King




|
fREc;EIVED - /3”0 g2 /25" 2 5 f'ﬁgf/z S

JUN 17 2025 _ Application for Consent
TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR =4 Under Section 58 of the PlahnlngAct

Note o Applicants: This appiication form is fo be used if the SOUTHEAST PARRY SOUND
DISTRICT PLANNING BOARD Is the consent granting authorily. in this form
Mefem'sub}eorlandmeonsmmwobesevemdmdmelandtobe

: refained.
Compieteness of the Applicafion
The Informadion In This fotm thot MUST be provided by the opplioant  Submission of the Appiioation
nmmwwmmhmmmammmm :gmmdmmmwnwmmum
This ilarmation Is presciibed i the Schedue 10 Reguiation
197/96 mode undex the Planning Act. The mandalory infornation @ 1 oiiginal copy of the completed applicafion fom ond skeich,
must be provided with the appropdale fee. It the mandalory Measurements are to be in meliic unis,

Infoimation and fee are not provided, the 86ord will retum
the appiication or refuse 1o futher consider the applicalion until the F
information and fee have been provided or Help

_ For more information on the Planning Act, the

The application fom aiso sefs out ofher inomation thatwil assist the  consent process, Provincial and local policies,
Planning Board and others In thek planning evakmlion of the please contact the Secretary/Treasurer of the

consent applcation. To ensure the quickest md most eom Southeast Parry Sound District Planning Board
at (705) 787-5070.

2, mdm%wmmmmi)’

e
gﬁé&” uwf""ﬁ"““' T

a-l-wz-!mm W\ é;il
T ST | A 4 e m [ );r’n/ £

12HE | e
_Are thage any easements o restictive covenants affeciing Muueduxp |
fbs 1 You, describe the easement or covenont and is effect.

“ Kesoluhon —



3 of ication .
ofanswiot - ‘Addition fo a lot
A : A
p32
33 o
. tlan and
’ .
(m)
(m)
)
> ;
oy sddeniki, elc.
Proposad Use(s)
> or
tbo!
d
> Provinciol
Publc
name of
Road h
of n 48
of
Waler Accons h 4
> 45
check
el h 1
of
h o)
>
and
o
h o

In nal

approp
A way easamentB
oh e
of
6729 %0.5 teo L
usc t s ¢ . S6t
.2 2.0% ¢.7 %
Re daYol Rs - Residential
- : Y Re sidentia
¢ 3 a ¥ co
Same a +
es es és
Y ¢ Yes Ves
et es Y
Yes Yes
Yes Yes Yes



sondcod Schood
48 o a h vho he Jondf or roadl,
ocbin  eik ‘ehodd e - Garner Tinm
49 ocoen °l}ﬂd g““ 4.4“ he ' docling fobe fhe
8. ae at for
’ ' qa e m & ‘
o
wer
o
An or ©
A Neo
A plan? ot Mo o
A { 1.2013
A waliond 120 of subjectlond NA
e
A 0
A mnrede 1 lond Neo
Ll ]
o use, and the usa(s) )
An ' MNo
A
6. of the f land
> a
Y/ 632 y ot 10
a a
> for the fond use.




w

e

8. SketCh wre me attoches sisich sheep R halp you prepore e siefch, refer 1o the altoohed Sampie Sieioh b The “Appilocfion Guide & & 4

81 The appicafion must be accampanied by a skelch showing the folowing: )
> ommmman%mummmummummwhm

.
.ummmmawMM¢muwmmmnmmw b
efiowance, & public boveled rood, o pivate oad o o sght of way g
> ﬂmbhmmiwmmnmunmwmmmbum
oubummmummmmhmw i

’

9.1 hmmmnmmmmmmmnmnmm““: 0 - R L
lumumordhchmumm : 5,

10. Affidavit or Swomn Declaration of Applicanifs) :
> Affidavit or Sworn Dechmﬂonforvmowomwﬂonwommmkmuuﬂon

M—_B‘_OEQC&__‘%Q otthe___LWp. d A Moy
hh—&ﬁi!ﬁi_&_kﬂy__mw end say (or solemnly declare) that the Infarmation oontsin od In this appic “

bhmmdﬂnwnmmdmemwmhodmmmmdm\yﬂbmnm




.11, Authorizations of Ownerfs)

11.1 i the appiicant is not the ownar of the land that ls the subject of this appiication, the wiilien authorization of the owner(e) hat the
d Wba:mnmnmmumbumwummmmmu
compisted. :

mmofmm)mmnmmmm

[ - , am/are the owner(s) of the land that is the subject of this application for a
consent and /we authorize ' o make this appilication on
my/fours behalt.

Gignehure of Owner

112 Hthe applicant is not the owner of the land that is the subject of this applostion, compiste the authorization of the owner(s)
conceming parsonal information set out below.

's) for Agent to Provide Personal Information

am/are the owners) of the iand thetIs the subject of this ppiloation tor

conssit end for the purposes of the Freedom of informetion end Protection of Primcy Act, /\we authodza._

- for this ™ o nformation Inoluded in this wilbe
Fuour agend for s applioaton, 1o provide wy of mytaus pesecrel ‘ spplication or

Signature of Owner

12. Consent of Ownerfs)
Compists the consent of the awner(s) conosming personal information set out balow:

t of the Owner(s) to the Use and Disclosurs of Personal information

amfare the ofthe land that fs the of this consent and for the
e T e e e e e

; title) .
0 Current reference plan of survey or regiatered plan (f avaliable)
0 Prescsibed applioation fee, elther as a certified chequs or money order, psyable 1o the Southeast Parry Sound District Planning Boasd.
The Planning Board will assign a Fils Number for compisie appiications and this should be used in el communications.
Submit completed application and fes to: ;
SOUTHEAST PARRY SOUND DISTRICT PLANNING BOARD
8 Main Street, P.O. Box 310 foge 5
Keamey, ON POA 1MO : .



42R—-12613

a %
[ Ly
o\ % %
4 »
* 1
]
s\ 5\
2 o s\ 3
r) 's Lakeja\ ¢
' D Subject Land.
% ‘i %
L\ ® ®\ 9 .
a
S\«
% % % o\
I\‘. % (3
) ®
KEY PLAN toms = 123000 (mettc)

SKETCH FOR SEVERANCE
APPLICATION PURPOSES

PREPARED FIN RACHARD HODOE

sg g
i
g
g
o
3
fi
=
&
5

55
:
:
]
|
:
i

R
B
égagzg §

g

PR B2i47-0xm 01
- T 10, PLAN Agu-e52
- mmmu‘uvmmmnmao—mm
4 & 8 FLAN 4SR-10490 AS IN CazioTy
~ ZOGEDER T AN EASSHENT OVER PART 1 PLAN 42R-10710 A5 I
= TOUNSHP OF
- X
3 UPBATE LOT MAY 34, 2035 W
2 | UPDATE LOT SEVERANCE CONFGURATON | WAV 3, 2m8 ]
1 RELZASED FOR DORMMENT March 12, 2028 -4
o, REMBION DATE APPROVED

camon ™
SAMON TS 13 NOT A PLAK OF SURVEY S0 SULL. NOT B2 USED EXCEPT

£ WLUANS SURVEVING 3 ;AL
DISTRBUTE OR ALTER THS FLAR N
WHOLE OR W PART WTKUT THE

EJWniiams

SURVEYING LIMITED
ONTARIO LAND SURVEYORS
PLANNERS
Main Officer 387 Mushokn Rd 3N PIH 15

Huntsvile, Ontario ‘

Phone:708-700—4111
Fa708- 7691

s FIS00-2200.3 Suvivedd Litedog




NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR CONSENT

pursuant to Ontario Regulation No. 197/96, as amended

TAKE NOTICE that the Southeast Parry Sound District Planning Board will be considering
applications for consent under Section 53 of the Planning Act (File No. B-032/25 & B-033/25).

THE PURPOSE AND EFFECT of the proposed consents is to create two new lots, together with
a right-of-way, for residential purposes.

THE SUBJECT LANDS ARE LOCATED in Part Lot 22, Concession 10, Lot 10, Plan 42M-632,
within the Township of Armour, as shown on the attached map(s). Severed 1 will have an
approximate frontage of 67.9 m. (222.77 ft.) on Jack’s Lake, an approximate depth of 245.6 m.
(805.77 ft.), an approximate area of 1.5 ha. (3.71 ac.) and has a dwelling, garage and sheds
located on it. Severed 2 will have an approximate frontage of 80.5 m. (264.1 ft.) on Jack’s Lake,
an approximate depth of 245.6 m. (805.77 ft.), an approximate area of 2 ha. (4.94 ac.) and is
vacant. The parcel to be retained will have an approximate frontage of 660 m. (2,165.35 ft.) on
Jack's Lake, an approximate depth of 255.6 m. (838.58 ft.), an approximate area of 8.7 ha. (21.5
ac.) and is vacant.

If a person or public body has the ability to appeal the decision of Southeast Parry Sound
District Planning Board in respect of the proposed consent to the Ontario Land Tribunal
but does not make written submissions to Southeast Parry Sound District Planning Board
before it gives or refuses to give a provisional consent, the Tribunal may dismiss the
appeal.

IF YOU WISH TO BE NOTIFIED OF THE DECISION OF THE SOUTHEAST PARRY SOUND

DISTRICT PLANNING BOARD IN RESPECT OF THE PROPOSED CONSENT, YOU MUST
MAKE A WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE PLANNING BOARD AT THE ADDRESS BELOW.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND MATERIAL on this application is available to the public for
inspection at the Planning Board office. Please quote FILE NO. B-032/25 & B-033/25.

DATED AT THE Southeast Parry Sound District Planning Board OFFICE THIS 17™H DAY OF
JUNE, 2025.

For more information about this matter, contact:

Linda Moyer, Secretary-Treasurer Office Location:
Southeast Parry Sound District Planning Board

P.O. Box 310 1695 Emsdale Road
Kearney, Ontario POA 1M0O Emsdale, ON

Telephone: (705) 787-5070

Email: Imoyer@sepsdplanningboard.ca



==
i
.

PART 1,

42R-12613

2
| FEY PN 2o - vsnmn o)

SKETCH FOR SEVERANCE
APPLICATION PURPOSES

PRENEED JOR RIMMO IO

AL - | 00

» 20 40 0 80 90 ;e

A I IAAAET S T
< ze

5 7 SRR,
—— FROPOND

L

b e g
RIS S SR A
‘Pm”m

SRR

BT B e

L2

R i
2 i mro




July 9, 2025
Planning Review — Hodge — Consents — B-032 and B-033/25
Boutheast Parry Sound District Planning Board

Applications for consent have been made to the Planning Board for two new
waterfront building lots and retaining one waterfront lot from the owners.

Location

The subject lands are iri Part Lot 22, Concession 10, Lot 10, Plan 42M-632 in
the Township of Armour. The lands are génerally located on the east side of
Jack’s Lake accessed via a private right of way as shown on the key plan on
the notice of application.

Background

Applications for two new waterfront building lots were assigned Planning
Board file numbers B-032/25 and B-033/25 and retaining one waterfront lot.

Overall, the subject lands consist of about 808.4m (2,652.35 feet) frontage on
Jack’s Lake and about 12.2ha (30.15 acres) of lot area. The land presently has
a dwelling, garage and sheds.

Proposed severed lot 1 will consist of about 67.9m (222.77 feet) frontage on
Jack’s Lake and about 1.8ha (8.71 acres) of lot area. It presently hasa
dwelling, garageé and sheds located on it.

Preposed severed lot 2 will consist of about 80.5m (264.1 feet) frontage on
Jack’s Lake and about 2ha (4.94acres) of lot area. It is presently vacant.

The proposed retained lot will consist of 660m (2,165.35 feet) water frontage
on Jack's Creek and 8.7ha (21.5 acres) of lot area. It is presently vacarit.

No Ontario CGrowth
No concerns.
Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) 2024

The subject lahds ate identified as Rural. The proposal is to create two new
waterfront building lots.



Chapter 2.6.1. states “On rural lands located in municipalities, permitted
uses are: ¢) residential development, including lot création, where site
conditions are suitable for the provision of appropriate sewage and water
sérvices;

The proposal is to create two new waterfront building lots. Confirmation from
the North Bay Mattawa Conservation Authorify would be required to ensure
the land is suitable for the interided sinhgle detached residential development
on severed lot 2. Severed Lot 1 is already developed and the retained has
suffucient area to accommodate a septic system.

Chapter 4 of the PPS is entitled the Wise Use and Management of Resoutrces
and primarily deals with the environmental health including fish habitat, deer
wintering yards, wetlands, wildlife including species at risk,
ground/surface/lake water, streams, agriculture, aggregate and archaeology
of an area.

Chapter 5 of the PPS is entitled Protecting Public Health and Safety and
addresses the health and safety issues and property damage that could result
from natural and man-made hazards. Primatrily this section deals with
flooding, contaminated sites, and mining/petroleum operations.

I have reviewed Schedule B of the Township's official plan — environmental
constraint areas and a small wetland area to the rear of the severed and
retained lots appears to be located on them. Severed Lot 1 is already
developed and severed lot 2 and the retained have sufficient area outside the
wetland to accommniodate future development.

Review of the Township's official plan schedule A —~1land use plan identified a
Flood Plain designation on thé rétained lands. The designation and the
corresponding Flood Plain (FP) zone will protect this area from incompatible
development.

I have reviewed the 2024 PPS and find that this proposal is consistent.
Township Official Plan

The subject lands are designated Waterfront Community, Floodplain with an
overlying Wetland designation.

Section 3.1 LAND DIVISION 3.1.1 SEVERANCES states in the Township’s
official plan “Severance by consent is the primary form of development in



Rrriiour Township and shall be permitted to continue provided it does not
result in negative impacts to municipal services.” What is important to
note in the Township’s official plan is that it does not limit the number of
severances that can occur at one time on one parcel of land.

The proposal for two néw l6ts by severance is following the direction of the
plan as the primary forin of development. In fact, by creatihg 2 new lots, it
will assist the tax base in paying for public services, even they are not the
beneficiary of any municipal road maintenarice, solid waste disposal or
sehool bus pick up.

Section 3.1.1. (b) states “Large lots shall be encouraged with wide
frontages of not less than 60 metres (200 feet) and areas of not less than
0.8 hectares (2 acres).

The proposed severed and retained lots there is a minimum of 1.5ha (3.71
acres) and 67.9m (222.77 feet frontage). They conform to the minimum
performance standards for area and frontage in the Township’s official plan.

Section 3.1.1. (i) states “Severances shall not be permitted without
frontage on a road which is open year-round and publicly owned and
maintained.”

The proposed severances are intended to be accessed via private road.

However, section 2.2.15 pertains specifically to WATERFRONT LOT ACCESS
and states;

(@) “By Water

On waterfront lots of record where access by road is either impractical ox
impessible, Gouncil may permit seasonal use of such lots where separate
mainland parking and docking facilities is available and navigable water
frontage is-available to tlie subject lot.”

I note on the application that the owner has also indicated water access, Lot 10
Plan 42M-632 is considered an existing lot. I suppose for new lot creation the
Township may consider water access. However, it was also indicated that
mainland access via a private right of way was also provided.

This section goes onto state:




%(b) By Private Condominium Roads Private roads are lanes, roads or
rights-of-way providing'access to two or more lots/units maintained by
private individuals or Condominium Corporations.”

It is the policy of Bxrmour Township Council to restrict new development
on private roads to intefnal roads within Plans of Condominium in
accordance with the Proviricial Policy Stateinent. Development
Kgreements and Site Plan Agreemerits applicable to units in plans of
condominium shall contain wording to inidicate that:”

It appeats the policy iri the Armour Township official plan is very strict as it
pertains to new lot creation on private roads. It appears that the original Lot
10 Plan 42M-632 was water access and granted a private right of way over the
years. Having said that in similar fashion fo that of a condominium agreement
site plan cortrol maybe used to include the wording right from the
Township’s official plan as follows:

@) The owner acknowledges and agrees that the lot/unit in
question does not front on a public road assumed for
maintenance by Axmour Township; and

(ii) The owner acknowledges and agrees that Armour Township is
not required to maintain or snowplow the said private road,
and also is not required to provide emexgency services,
garbage collection or school busing; and

(iii) The ownér acknowledges and agrees that Armour Township
will not take over or assume a private road as a Township
public road or street unless it has been built according to an
appropriate Township road standard; and

(iv) The owner acknowledges and agrees that Armour Township is
not liable for any injuries, losses oxr damagesas a
consequénce of the Township issuirg a building permit.”

Additionally, the proposed lots are already zoned Seasonal Residential (SR)
which is the appropriate zone for lots that do not front onto a year round
muhicipally maintained road.

Section 2.3.8 referring to No New Development Until Lake Capacity Studies
Are Completed




And specifically paragtaph (c) states “With the exception of property
consolidations or access rights of way, all lands with frontage on lakes in
Brmour Township are closed to new langd division by consent or plans of
subdivision or condominium or any other type of intensification
including cotporite, co-operative of fractional ownership until such time
as lake development capacity studies have beéh completéd (see Section
2.2.4) in accordance with the Lakeshore Capacity Assessment Handbook.
Such studies will be implemented as Appendices to the Official Plan
containing lake-specific development limits and guides.”

There was previous land division approval on this property which included
the division of Lot 8 Plan M632 which was already developed and numerous
lot addition and right of way applications. A lake capacity study prepared by
FRI Corp dated May 2021 indicates that there is sufficient capacity to
acecommodate oné new waterfront residential building lot.

I have reviewed the Township of Armour official plan, subject to the Township
being satisfied that the proposal addresses their access policies I conclude
that proposal conforms.

Zoning By-Law

The existing zoning is Seasonal Residential (SR) and Wetland Protection (W)
on the proposed severed lots and Seasonal Residential (SR, Ruxal (Ru),
Floodplain (FP) and Wetlands Protection (W) on the propesed retained lot.

Section 2.2.8 of the Township's official plan states “GENERAL POLICIES (a)
It is intended that singlé detached &wellings in the Watexfront
Community will be zoned in part for permanent use and in part for
seasonal use.”

The intended use would appear to be residential in the form of a single
detached dwelling. Because the lots are accessed via a private right of way
and do not front a year-found miinicipally niaintained road, they are
appropriately zoned Seasonal Residential (SR).

The minimum frontage for a new residential lot in the SR and RU zone is 61m
(200 feet) and the minimum lot area is 0.8ha (2 acres). All the proposed lots
appear to comply with the existing SR and RU zoning for frontage and area.
Therefore, a rezoning is not required,




The FP and W zohes will remain to protect these natural features from
ificompatiblé development.

Recommendation

Having reviewed the Township’s official plan and zoning by-law and the 2024
PPS, [ recomniend consent applications B-032 and 033/28 be approved with
standard conditions including confirmation from the NBMCA for a suitable
septic system on proposed severed lot 2, that the Township is satisfied that
the proposed lots conform to their official plan policies for access, amongst
others.

Respectfully submitted.
LannyD.PJanning

is, President




ROBERT J. MILLER Land Use Planning Services

15 Brock Street RR#3 NIAGARA-ON-THE-LAKE ONTARIO LOS 1J0  905.468.0582  cell/txt 289.213.4421

Robert J. Miller
Professional Land Use Planner
Email plansifter@gmail.com

July 10, 2025 VIA EMAIL clerk@armourtownship.ca

RECEIVED
Township of Armour
c/o Mrs. Charlene Watt, Municipal Clerk JUL 10 2025
56 Ontario Street
Burk’s Falls, ON POA 1C0O TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

Dear Mrs. Watt, Mayor Rod Ward and Members of Council:
RE: Proposed Consents B-032/25 & B-033/25 Nicolia Dr. (Hodge)

This planning brief is in response to your request for a review of the above applications to sever
two residential lots from lands located south of the terminus of Nicolia Drive comprising Part of
Lot 22, Concession 10 being Lot 10 of Plan 42M-632 in Armour Township.

Proposed

Severed parcel 1: Front line 67.9+ m on Jack’s Lake.
Area 1.5t ha, containing a cottage, garage and sheds

Severed parcel 2: Front line 80.5t m on Jack’s Lake
Area 2.0+ ha, vacant

Retained parcel: Front line 660.0+ m on Jack’s Lake and Jack’s Creek
Area 8.7t ha, vacant

Regarding matters of Provincial interest, Section 2 Planning Act

e No issues

Regarding all applicable tests, Section 51(24) Planning Act

e No issues

Consistency with Provincial Planning Statement, 2024 (PPS)

e No issues

Consistency with Growth Plan For Northern Ontario, 2011

e No issues




Mrs. Charlene Watt
Armour Township
July 10, 2025

Page 2

Conformity with applicable policies of the Armour Township Official Plan

* Noissues

Conformity with provisions of the Armour Township Zoning By-law

e No issues.

Compliance with Armour Requirements for Complete Application

e No issues

Planning Review by the Planning Board

e No issues

Suggested Conditions of Consent

e The standard conditions covering cash in lieu of parkland and PPS proof of contract to
discharge off-site septage for the proposed new lot and the retained parcels.

The applications should be approved as Dick is a proper gentleman and they meet all of the
above required land division tests, thereby representing good planning.

Yours very truly
fh e

Robert J. Miller



RECEIVED

JuL 15 2025 (Z )
TOMNSH!P OF ARMOUR
56 ONTARIO STREET (705)382-3332
PO BOX 533 (705) 382-2954
BURK'S FALLS, ON Fax (705) 382-2068

Website: www.armourtownship.ca

APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN AGREEMENT
Applicant's Name; Chauhan, Pavitar Preet Singh oy No: 4919000002014310000

e Site Plan Agreement
0 Amendment to Site Plan

IWe hereby submit an application for approval of site plans and a Site Plan Agreement
by the Township of Armour.

Dated this_14 day of July 2026

Ycﬂ\*‘* ?\" “‘.A/Z'

Signature

EOR OFFICE USE ONLY
Date Application Received:__July 15th, 2025
Checkéd By: KH

Fee Submitted: /

Cost Acknowledgement Agreement Signed:

Yes

Site Plan Agreement required pursuant to:

Site Plan control, Section 41, Planning Act

Rezoning

Official Plan Amendment

Southeast Parry Sound District Planning Board Decision
Committee of Adjustment Decision

Ontario Municipal Board Order

Other (specify)

ocoooocdsa

Page 1 of 6

‘QSDLUT‘ O‘\l e




Name of Registered Owner (please print) Chauhan, Pavitar Preet Singh

(If owner js.a numbered company, please complete details below)
Address.%——

Telephone / Fax / Cell #s: _

£.mail adaress BTN

Numbered Company Authorization:
Please provide name and title for fwo signing officers for the company.

First Officer:

Name (Please print) Title

| have the authority to bind the Corporation.

Signature

nd Officer:

Name (Please print) Title
| have the authority to bind the Corporation.

| Signature

Page 20f 6




Applicant (or authorized agent): Duncan Ross Architect

Address: 201-36 Chaffey Street, Huntsville. Ontario P1H 1J4

Telephonej]:‘ax/ce" #s: 705 789 3036

Email Address: J€SSica@duncanross.ca

Unless otherwise requested, all communication will be directed to the applicant.

Registered Owner’s Authorization:

As of the date of this application, | am the registered owner of the lands described in this
application, and | have examined the contents of this application and hereby certify that
the information submitted with the application is correct insofar as | have knowledge of
these facts, and | concur with the submission of this application by:

who | have appointed as my agent.

Brkon Porst B—pr 1b Tuly Xous”

Signature of Registered Owner Date

Page 3 of 6




Mortgagees(s):

Address:

Telephone/Fax Numbers:

Location of Site
Lot 5 Goncession O Plan Number 42M675 | 14 in Plan 9

Frontage (Name of Lake or Road): Millie's Way
Existing Zoning: Ru/FP-101

Official Plan Designation: Rural Commumty
Development Proposed: Construction of a new single detached dwelling

Page 4 of &




NOTES TO THIS SHEET:

. DIMENSIONS ARE TAKEN TO FACE OF BLOCK, FACE STUD, AND CENTERLINE COLUMN.
TO SURVEY KPK SURVEYING INC. FILE NO. 7 AND GRADING PLAN BY DUKE INEERING PROJECT NUMBER 25-73-01

3. RESERVED
MILLIES WAY (202 RD) ARMOUR
TOWNSHIP- LOT 9
ZONING INFORMATION- RURAL RU. CLAUSES C AND D -
. Received -
N As BASTI June 20th, 2025 . pid
PERCENT : - Township of Armour e
am 60561 & Ve //
BM 1B [-3-- o] b Vie //
7
MIN. FLOOR B6 9Q.M. &00 SQFT. 1 sQ.M. //
(2618 SQ.FT) 7
E AREA IS FROM EXTERI  WALLS AND EXCLUDES GARAGE, 7
FRONT , AND BACK DECK. //o\o?r
e
7
'
7
< STING
// \ VEGETATION
e AN
gzt \
% RESIDENCE
o e el
- PROPOSED u} % ... SEPTIC
< ) % o
°
PROPOSED ; o 1 &
\ ®
°
Py !
KEY PLAN A
MILLIE'S WAY // : BusTNG gﬂa/m /I
/
LoT ®
A |
/ ° —_——— e
i/ © ° NE
/
wrs /
LOT 1

Schedule B

LINE

PROPERTY LINE

REAR SETBACK

J
Ve
7
Ve
Ve
7
4§¢
&7
&7
7/
7
o &M 181 aom

Duncan Ross
Architect

EET, SUITE 201
ARIC

REVISIONS:

NO. | DATE PTION
CH SOOI,

ISSUED:

CHAUHAN RESIDENCE

24-72

SITE
PLAN

J.b.

_ D.R. SP_1

1:800




RECEIVED

JUL 15 2025
TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR
56 ONTARIO STREET (705) 382-3332
PO BOX 533 (705) 382-2954
BURK'S FALLS, ON Fax: (705) 382-2068

Website: www.armourtownship.ca

APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN AGREEMENT

Applicant's Name: Daniel Bowering . Roll No: 4919000001731000000
ves\e. VAoakxarc
Site Plan Agreement
O Amendment to Site Plan

|/We hereby submit an application for approval of site plans and a Site Plan Agreement
by the Township of Armour.

Dated this_15th _ day of July ,2025

Daniel Bowering o8e 2esor ve 125e22 orc0

Signature

EOR OFFICE USE ONLY
Date Application Received:__July 15th, 2025
Checked By:__KH

Fee Submitted;___Yes

Cost Acknowledgement Agreement Signed:____YeS

Site Plan Agreement required pursuant to:

Site Plan control, Section 41, Planning Act

Rezoning

Official Plan Amendment

Southeast Parry Sound District Planning Board Decision
Committee of Adjustment Decision

Ontario Municipal Board Order

Other (specify)

oOoooi0o

-“KesoLOTioN —

Page 10of §




Name of Registered Owner (please print) Daniel Bowering | \es\e Vaavasic

(If owner is a numbered company, please complete details below

Telephone / Fax / Cell #s: —

e mai Adcress R

Numbered Company Authorization:
Please provide name and title for two signing officers for the company.
Eirst Officer:

Name (Please print) Title

| have the authority to bind the Corporation.

Signature

Second Officer:

Name (Please print) Title
| have the authority to bind the Corporation.

_Sﬂnature

Page 20f 6




Applicant (or authorized agent): Ron Harrison
Address: 22 Knotty Pine Trail, Huntsville Ontario P1H 1S7

Telephone/Fax/Cell #s: 289.200.3880

Email Address: Ron@rdhdesign.com

Unless otherwise requested, all communication will be directed to the applicant.

Registered Owner’s Authorization:

As of the date of this application, | am the registered owner of the lands described in this
application, and | have examined the contents of this application and hereby certify that
the information submitted with the application is correct insofar as | have knowledge of
these facts, and | concur with the submission of this application by:

Ron Harrison

who | have appointed as my agent.

Daniel BOWering go. %ssor 12 1assts oree” 2025.07.15
Signature of Registered Owner Date

Page 3 of §




Mortgagees(s):

Address:

Telephone/Fax Numbers:

Location of i
Lot17 Concession O Plan Number 42R8352 | i 4in Plan 2

Frontage (Name of Lake or Road): 1 ree Mile Lake
Existing Zoning: LR (Lakeshore Residential), FP

Official Plan Designation: VVaterfront Community, Flood Plain
Development Proposed: D€MO all structures on the

property including: Existing Cottage, Two Sheds, Bunkie and Garage with
future plans to rebuild

Page 4 of §




AREA OF FEATURES
TOTAL SUBJECT AREA TD  ATER'S EDGE.
hae
Lot * ORD: OF THE
Lot AGE AS PER OF ARM
z BY-LA NO. 23-2010)
3,326 o
STRUCTURES
DE PT
A oECK nsm
B BUNKIE Nl m
e DECK. 32m
i D 48
£ SHED &2 m
F DECK 85.0 m
[ 184
H COTT GE Y243 m
B 9m
4 SH 8.0

WATER'S EB  TIES

COCRDINA ~ REFER TO UTM 2ONE 17

81 L DE} NADES {CSRS)
0y
P T NGR EAST!
1 SO51 00 8302 1
2z Fomes 6¥ 8
3 1149 830231
I 1133
so5t1 &
S 6302305
7 5051104 6302387
8 5051101 4 30240
§OE,
i 100ne 6302
12 goB109), 245,
13 1085 30248,
13 80510872 [
15 50810887 630250
16 50510860 2,
17 s05f 3 6302
18 5081081.8 630258,
§ o S pge
Pl 5051679:4 9

KEY PLAN

543 RELATIVE RD
BURK'S FALLS, ON POA 140

LEGEND:
e . . SCHEDULE B
MONUMENT 5
p®  fEE . ORT ADAO B Received ¥
4
o BEE e oo July 8th, 2025
Zgg o'rgsp_R:c. STEWART, OLS - TownS |p Of Al'mour
PIN  DENOTES PROPERTY T  TION WU BER / 2
M .nmgvtg EASURED . Q«b
s DONORR or soae / . e
Pl TES: PSR-1997 Y A
e DENOTES 4ZR-B352 . N 23
R & 5 %
AN DEN.  ANCH FOR UTIUTY POLE &
) Q
ﬁ_ m u“uw P &b / 20m SHORELINE VEGITATION
—-OW- DEN: § & AREA
@ PENOTES STAKE ‘2/ NATURAL BUSH AREA
é‘;’
"TURE D TE. TABLE " LR ZONE %, Q'b *f
(8100" LON _ DE) NADB3<(CSRS) G, S ,
(20%0. qq'\‘* }4: 4 ‘
4, *® ., ’ %
un < S e % @
L, NG T L T %,
1 505104829
2 m%&m 016773 o, RO 4,
@ %, @
PN «
R ING NG NATURAL BUSH AREA S
M1 85 43 exes
mz ’\ 'e 6; 3 Py 2 BARRIES OF CHECK DAMS CONSTUCTED W/ STRAW BALES 2
»19’ DEEP AND SILT FENCE TQ PROTECT LAKE FROM SEDIMENT
k4
PROPOSED DRIP THROUGH NATURAL BUSH AREA
DECK = 504 SQFT (46 8M 5Q}
PROPOSED DWELLING = 1.240
EXISTING NATURAL DRAINAGE SQFT (1152 M$Q)
OITCH
N 1 CHECK DAMS CONSTUCTED W/ STRAW BALES 2 DEEP AND SILT
\ FERCE TO DIVERT WATER FROM EXCAVATED AREA
0" N
A" EXISTING GRADING DIRECTION 4 /
TO REMAIN s 7 / , PROPOSED NEW SEPTIC AREA
Ry P R SITE STATISTICS
s .
» B o, N ’ TOTAL LOT AREA =37,169.3 SQFT. (3,453.11 M.SQ))
N %,‘ - <, 7y, LR ZONE EXISTING COTTAGE = 1,337.95 SQFT. (1243 M.5Q)
"t - V2 e NATURAL DRAAGE OTHER EXISTING = 1,744.83 SQFT. (162.1 M.SQ)
AN <, oL N TOTAL EXISTING LOT COVERAGE ~ 3,082.78 SQFT. (2864 MSQ)  8.29%
N « l, L IR TOTAL BXISTING TO BE DEMOLISHED = 3,082.78 SQ.FT. (286.4 MSQ) = 8.29%
By %y . EXISTING LOT COVERAGE TO REMAIN = 0 SQFT. (0 M.SQ) = 0%
N LY /
K K N ¢ 2 TOTAL ALLOWED LOT COVERAGE 35% OR 130092 SQFT (1,2086 M SQ)
W Y, P, %/ PROPOSED DWELLING 1,240 SQ/FT. (1152 MSQ))
\ 4, *% o Zo, ,7 NATURAL BUSH AREA / PROPOSED DRIP THROUGH DECK 504 SQ.FT (46.8M.5Q)
L -:,;") ‘s TOTAL PROPOSED LOT COVERAGE 1,744 SQFT.(162 MSQ) OR 4.69%
. ‘f% N, 2 REMAINING LOT COVERAGE  11,265.2 SQ.FT. (1,046.57 M.SQ) OR 30.31%
° N %, i /
0 w 4{ "5% /
» AN / ‘ o ZONING INFO
% R , e,
%, AN P Y g PRECINCT LR LAKESHORE RESIDENTIAL
N \% fo, 3 MAX LOT COVERAGE  35%
N “ , SETBACKS.
o © » Q LOT FRONT  30m {1007
PR EXTSIDE  30m (100)
co® \$\ o INTSIDE  3m (107
W REAR YARD  8m (25)
B At & N
o T @ g0 MAX HEIGHTS:
S e It o o MAIN DWELLING 2 1/2 STOREYS
AN W0t e © MINIMUM LANDSCAPED OPEN SPACE  30%
v
N ooV
oo ad .
e Site Plan - PROPOSED
o O 1 250 ! o |

RDH Design
PHONE: 289-200-3880
ron@rdhdesign.com
www.RDHdesign.com

REFER TO DRAWING W02 FOR GENERAL
NOTES SCHEDULES AND RELATED
APPLICABLE ITEMS

ALL DIMENSIONS IN BRACKETS
ARE IN MILLIMETERS

943 Relative Rd
Burk's Falls, ON POA 1J0
Version 1d

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

STAMP

25003

DRAWN BY: Rox
DATE: 0717724
CHKDBY: o
PLOT DATE: MAY, 2024

AO0-4



PO BOX 533 (705) 382-2954
BURK'S FALLS, ON Fax: (705) 382-2068

Website: www.armourtownship.ca

APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN AGREEMENT

RQcceco g et oene

Applicant's Name:_JEFFREY  BAN/ZP Rl No:
& Site Plan Agreement
O Amendment to Site Plan

I/We hereby submit an application for approval of site plans and a Site Plan Agreement
by the Township of Armour.

Dated this /g’ day of TulY , 20 2;_*':'
S
EOR OFFICE USE ONLY
Date Application Received:_July o 2.07%
Checked By:_JAH

Fee Submitted:_Nes - FJuly \5, 2075
Cost Acknowledgement Agreement Signed:_Ne<,

Site Plan Agreement required pursuant to:

Site Plan control, Section 41, Planning Act

Rezoning

Official Plan Amendment

Southeast Parry Sound District Planning Board Decision
Commiittee of Adjustment Decision

Ontario Municipal Board Order

Other (specify)

oogooda

- KesoLuTioNd -

Page 1of §




Name of Registered Owner (please print)__JEFFREY  BANETL

{if owner is a numbered company, please complete details below)
Address:

Telophone / Fax! Cat #_

e-mai accrse:_|

Numbered Company Authorization:
Please provide name and fitie for fwo signing officers for the company.

Eirst Officer:

Name (Please print) Title
| have the authority to bind the Corporation.

Signature

Second Officer:

Name (Please print) Title
| have the authority to bind the Corporation.

| Signature

Page 2of §




Applicant (or authorized agent): J E EE R g Z [3 & H )z R~
- A 42

respronciraxcet #s: [N
emai acress:_ |

Unless otherwise requested, all communication will be directed to the applicant.

Registered Owner’s Authorization:

As of the date of this application, | am the registered owner of the lands described in this
application, and | have examined the contents of this application and hereby certify that
the information submitted with the application is correct insofar as | have knowledge of
these facts, and | concur with the submission of this application by:

who | have appointed as my agent.

% ZMA o Qz‘z 16 /2928
Sigl of Registered Owner Date

Page 30of 5




Mortgagees(s): /

\\\ >

X/

\

Telephone/Fax Numbers: / \
~ N

Location of Site
Lot__ 44 Concession___ £ Plan Number, Lot#inPlan____
Frontage (Name of Lake or Road): X0 (0/Am) IR/ VK -

Existing Zoning: ___ [ /0.
Official Plan Designation:

Development Proposed: SIAELA 1ML PO CAIKG -

Page 4 of 5




’
/
s

/
Ador 1o

s & 11,7

ZONING: RU

A ALLOPWANCE BETWEEN LO

Lor 1

Received

July 10th, 2025
Township of Armour

\-\

S 1444 TH(LT)

=
x

SONCENSION S

Schedule B

/

7 7

Cry

KEY PLAN 200

§:=I| -
i
1
1

wriz | owra

wis wre

LO7 11
LOr 1z

wr 13

M w12
1 E

- =

CUNCESSION 4

SEE DETAIL

S,

wr i3

o7 14
3

PURPOSES

nETRE:
TR T s B
CLEVATIONS SHOWH ON TS SKEIOH ARE OCRIVED FROM GMTARI) MRSTRY
e
INTORMATIIN SHOWN HIREON IS QASED 0N FIELD WORY COMPLETED
WAY 4, 2028

e muRAL (RU) & 000 AN (FP)

MUNICPAL ADORESS: &1 NAG WEW DRIVE

LEGAL OESCRIPTION:
ot e pep—
—TomesHe & aduout

o
-OSTRCT OF PAIY SOUD

woIE
0 BE ABOWE FLOOD

1S CONPRVED PLAN
fvaToN OF 196.3m (umnan) Y SuRvEY FELDRORX

oATED

DETAIL

Secale = 1:400

Lor 10

ZONING: RU

CONCESSION 4

LOT 10

Z0NING: RU

S0 & 17

7S

EEN LO

ET

ROAD ALLOWANCE B

VYeor 1Y

|

“w?

PIN $2144-0479(LT)

S

ZONING:

FLOID CONTOUR &
ELEVATON = 290 7 (cTV028:70)
ESTARUSED BY

i

114004

|

SONCESSION 5

ROAD ALLOWANCE BETWEEN CONCESSIONS 4 &5

Lo ——

CONCESSION 4

ZONING: RU 3
2
1 ROLASIO FOR COMMENT ALY 8, 2023 PNA
Mo REVSION DATE APPROVED
CAUTION: TWIS 1S NOT A PLAN OF SURVEY AND SHALL NOT BE USED EXCEPT
FOR_THE PURPOSE DOICATED I THE TINE BLOCK
© €4 WLUAMS SURVEYING LIITED. NO PERSON SHALL
COPY, REPRODUCE, DISTRIBUTE OR ALTER THIS PLAM N
WHOLE OR ¥ PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF
€4 WLLANS SURVEYING LIMITED.
& ILLIAMS
o7 e G oo | SURVBYING LIMITED
reaTae ARTA (SOUARE METRLS) | ARCA (SOUARS WETRES) QMMID"MN‘N?‘E%MYORS
PIN S2144-04700LT) 690002 890002 HUNTSVILLE & SOUTH RIVER
s s [ Moin Office: 387 Muskoko Rd N PIH 1CS
oo e Gt
PROPOSED OWELLING, COVERED PORCH, AMD DECK 1226 Fax 705-789-1007
: infoOej .com
LOT COVDRAGE ames C.27Bt

F1829-256.0wg




THE UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF AR OUR

BY-LAW #47-2025

(Site Plan Agreement with Jeffrey Baker)

Being a By-law to authorize the execution of a Site Plan Agreement between
Jeffrey Baker (‘owner’) and the Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour
with respect to 39 Magview Drive, more particularly described as PT LT 11 CON 5
ARMOUR AS IN R0212228; ARMOUR located along the west ba k of the
Magnetawan River north of the Hamlet of Katrine, Township of Armour, District of
Parry Sound (“subject lands”).

WHEREAS it is deemed expedient to enter into a Site Plan Agreem nt with the
owner with respect to building a new detached dwelling on the subject lands;

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF
THE TOWNSHIP OF AR OUR HEREBY ENACTS as follows:

1. THAT the Mayor and Municipal Clerk are hereby authorized to enter into a
Site Plan Agreement with the owner that is substantially in the form attached
hereto; and

2 THAT the Mayor and Municipal Clerk are hereby instructed not to complete
the execution of the Site Plan Agreement until there is received from the
owner's solicitor a letter confirming that Paragraph 2 of the Site Plan
Agreement has been complied with by the owner.

3. THAT the Clerk of the Township of Armour is hereby authorized to make any
minor modifications or corrections of an administrative, numeric, grammatic,
semantic or descriptive nature or kind to the by-law and schedule(s) as may
be deemed necessary after the passage of this by-law, where such
modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law.

Read in its entirety, approved,

signed and the seal of the Rod Ward, Ma or
Corporation affixed thereto and
finally passed in open Council
this 22" day of July, 2025.

Charlene Watt, Clerk



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR
SITE PLAN AGREEMENT
(Jeffrey Baker)

THIS AGREEMENT made in triplicate this¥Fday of O'F, 2025.

BETWEEN:

THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

(hereinafter called the "Township")
of the FIRST PART,

- AND -
JEFFREY BAKER
(hereinafter called the "Owner")
of the SECOND PART.
WHEREAS the lands affected by this Agreement are the lands described in
Schedule "A” hereto annexed, and are herein referred to as the “said lands”;
WHEREAS the Council of the Township has designated the lands described in
Schedule “A” to this Agreement as being within a site plan control area as provided for
by the Armour Township Official Plan and Section 41 of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1890;
NOW THEREFORE, THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH that in consideration of
the premises and for other good and valuable consideration and the sum of Two
Dollars ($2.00) of lawful money of Canada now paid by the Township to the Owner (the
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged), THE TOWNSHIP AND THE OWNER
HEREBY COVENANT AND AGREE WITH ONE ANOTHER AS FOLLOWS:
1.  SCOPE OF AGREEMENT
a. Desctiption of Lands - The lands affected by this Agreement are the said
lands.
b. Conformity with Agreemeht - The Owner covenants and agrees that no
work shall be performed on the said lands or on other lands of the
Township except in conformity with the provisions of this Site Plan

Agreement hereinafter referred to.



c. Reliance Upon Representations - The Owner acknowledges that:

He has made representations to the Township that he will complete
all works required in accordance with the aforesaid Site Plan
Agreement; and

The Township has entered into this Agreement in reliance upon

these representations.

d. Schedules Attached - The following Schedules are attached to this

Agreement:

Schedule “A” - Descriptions of Lands
Schedule “B” - Site Plan

2. CONDITIONS PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT BY TOWNSHIP

a. Prior to the execution of this Agreement by the Township, the Owner shall:

Taxes - have paid all municipal tax bills issued and outstanding

- against the said lands; and

Land Ownership - be the registered Owner in fee simple of the
lands described in Schedule “A", and that there will be no
encumbrances registered against said lands which will have priority

to this Site Plan Agreement when registered.

3. DRIVEWAY ENTRANCE

a The Owner will construct and install, at his expense, a driveway entrance

for the lot to provide access to 39 Magview Drive.

4, COND!

10 ANCE T

a. The Owner acknowledges and agrees that no Building Permit will be

issued on the said lot until the Owner has entered into this Site Plan

Agreement with the Township under Section 41 of the Planning Act with

the Site Plan drawings attached as Schedule “B” showing:

(i) all lot boundaries, adjacent rights of way, road allowances
and water bodies; and

(i)  location of proposed buildings and structures including



docks, driveways, sewage and water systems, and storm
water management and (siltation control facilities at Building
Permit stage) together with zoning setpaoks to the lot lines
for all proposed buildings, structures and sewage systems.
The Site Plan attached as Schedule “B" and all construction arising from
the issuance of a Building Permit or Permits shall be in conformity with the
terms of this Agreement.
Easements - The Owner has filed with the Municipal Solicitor, in
registerable form, any easements required for driveway access, electrical
or storm drainage purposes including a Postponement of
Mortgage/Charge document with respect to any Mortgages registered in

priority to the easement.

5. SPECIAL PROVISIONS

The Owner agrees that not more than one septic or filter bed sewage
system will be constructed on the lot.

The Owner agnﬁes that within the forested area of the lot, including low
under-storey vegetation, in accordance with Armour Township By-law No.
21-2020, no clear-cutting will be done and the construction site will be
limited to selective cutting of existing vegetation, thereby ensuring
preservation and enhancement of the landscape.

Prior to constructing any new docking facilities or any works or
undertakings that will have 15m? (162 sq. ft.) or more in physical contact
with the bed of the Magnetawan River, the lot Owner agrees to contact the
provincial Ministry of Natural Resources & Forestry and, where Armour
Township determines that impacts to fish and fish habitat under the
Fisheries Act cannot be avoided, the Owner also agrees to contact the
federal Department of Fisheries and Oceans to ensure that all
construction is done in accordance with applicable legislation. Further, the

Owner agrees that any repair or structural work involving dock stringers or



cribs above or below the waterline requires a Building Permit from the
Township of Armour.

The Owner acknowledges that all new residential buildings or structures,
except docks, exterior decks and access ramps, will:

i) Be floodproofed to, and not have a building opening lower
than, the Regulatory Flood Elevation of 296.70 metres CGD
for the Katrine 7 Flood Plain Section of the Magnetawan
River; and

ii) If the required floodproofing exceeds 1.0 metre, have
foundation drawings designed and stamped by a qualified
professional engineer with current registration in the
Province of Ontario; and

iii)  Be permitted to install mechanical, electrical and heating
equipment inside the foundation and below the Regulatory
Flood Elevation of 296.70 metres CGD for the Katrine 7
Flood Plain Section of the Magnetawan River only if the
foundation is designed to be flood proof and stamped by a

qualified professional engineer.

6. REGISTRATION OF SITE PLAN AGREEMENT

The Owner consents to the registration of this Agreement by the Township
upon the title of the said lands. The Owner further agrees to execute such
further and other Instruments and Documents as may be required by the
Township for the purpose of giving effect to this Agreement.

FICATION M D RELEASE
The Owner covenants and agrees with the Township on behalf of himself,
his successors and assigns, to indemnify and save harmless the
Township, its servants and agents from and against any and all actions,
suits, claims and demands whatsoever which may arise either directly orv

indirectly by reason of any work performed by the Owner or on his behalf



10.

in connection with the carrying out of the provisions of this Agreement.
The Owner further covenants and agrees to release and forever discharge
the Township from and against all claims, demands, causes of actions, of
every nature and type whatsoever that may arise either as a result of the
failure of the Township to carry out any of its obligations under this
Agreement, or, as a result of the Township performing any municipal work
on the said lands or the adjacent properliés which may damage or
interfere with the works of the Owner, provided that such damage or
interference was not caused as a result of negligence on the part of the

Township, its servants or agents.

TIME OF THE ESSENCE

The parties hereto agree that time shall be of the essence in this

Agreement.

ESTOPPEL OF OWNER

The Owner agrees to not call into question directly or indirectly in any
proceeding whatsoever, in law or in equity, or before any administrative
tribunal, the right of the Township to enter into this Agreement and to
enforce each and every term, covenant and condition herein contained
and this Agreement may be pleaded as an estoppel against the Owner in
any such proceedings.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by an instrument
in writing signed by the parties hereto or by his successors or assigns.
This Agreement and the Schedules attached hereto constitute the entire
Agreement between the parties and neither party is bound by any
representation, warranty, promise, agreement or inducement not
embodied herein or therein.

There shall be no change in the Schedules attached hereto, or in any Site
Plan accepted by the Township or others, unless such proposed changes



1.

12.

have been submitted to, and approved by, the Township.

ATTACHED SCHEDULES

INTERPRETATION

It is agreed that everything included in this Agreement and the schedules

attached thereto shall be included in and form part of this Agreement.

The parties agree that in interpreting the provisions of this Agreement:

“Owner” where used in this Agreement, and in addition to its
accepted meaning, means and includes an individual, an
association, a partnership or an incorporated company.
Wherever the singular is used in this Agreement it shall be
construed as including the plural, and wherever the
masculine is used in this Agreement it shall be construed as
including the feminine and neutral genders.

All covenants, rights, advantages, privileges, immunities,
powers and things hereby secured to the Township shall be
equally secured to and exercisable by its successors and
assigns as the case may be.

All covenants, liabilities and obligations entered into and’
imposed hereunder upon the Owner shall be equally binding
upon his heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, or
successors and assigns as the case may be, and that all
such covenants and liabilities and obligations shall be joint

and several.



THIS AGREEMENT shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon each of the
parties hereto and his respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on
the following dates:

By the Owner on thel Fday of O, 2025

In the presence of:

Signature of Wit M 4
Sepnaniy,

By the Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour on this  day of , 2025

THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

Mayor
Rod Ward

Municipal Clerk
Charlene Watt

1/ we have the power to bind the Corporation



HEDULE *A”

THIS IS SCHEDULE "A” TO THE SITE PLAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR
AND .
JEFFREY BAKER

DESCRIPTION

The lands subject of this Agreement are located at 39 Magview Drive, more particularly
described as PT LT 11 CON 5 ARMOUR AS IN RO212228; ARMOUR located along
the west bank of the Magnetawan River north of the Hamlet of Katrine, Township of
Armour, District of Parry Sound.



SCHEDULE “B”

THIS IS SCHEDULE B’ TO THE SITE PLAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR
AND
JEFFREY BAKER

SITE PLAN FOR
JEFFREY BAKER

The Site Plan is composed of one drawing as follows:

1. “ Sketch For Site Plan Purposes”, prepared by EJWilliams Surveying Limited,

released for comment on July 9, 2025 and stamped received by the Township of
Armour on July 10, 2025.

The above drawing is incorporated by reference and forms part of this Agreement. A

copy of the said Site Plan may be viewed at the municipal office of the Township of
Armour during business hours.



Schedule B KeY PuaN Scate = 1:20
Rm 1 ] | ]
o e 2025 Firs fure Lol
‘,I i Township of Armour [ ! gy wra |
4 1 T ——e T wrs 1 a I
L / SRS
1 S\ Ny e ea - N R, A
\\ \\ - - \ | : ‘”— wrn ,wrn :
N N / A
\ -
\\\ "/ \ /// wre ! ws  ? i 'ﬁ‘ é ; wr !t
~o
w  / ) N
et ;S ! : : s
i ; T ETT
/ / | s
l’ : & E:s s :
5 - / slk wre ! wre i ! Wi | ere
N ~ { S [ T
RN 1y / / = i
S = § / bson ; o ‘.
i ’ - - —— lemaao oo B [,
\ / h
A — { ’/ wre ! wre s IE o o W e
; \ /_ () / f" ] ZONING' FP 7 7
-~ - !
) ‘) i i SKETCH FOR TE PLAN
Y / / PURPOSES
E‘ | H Fi { PRPARED FOR ROD €  sow
S \| SCAME = 1 1800
2 " \‘ e P 0
| N \ 7 1 AT SITE OF 7S LN 8 14 WO
N L) A ar N MEGHT SHEN PLOTTED AT A SCALE voisen
i' RN LY / \
\, 9 Ay )
k"‘.\ N\ %;‘\’: \ // : .
. N\ AN AN oA B e
TR VAN e
3 N ) g P~ =1
ZONING: RU 2 \ % // ( % OIS ST
A} B DEMOTES SHORT STAMDARD oA
& ZONING: RU N, ~ / \ 3 €OV 78 DENOTES CAMADN G2 TC VERDCAL GAM OF 1928,
¢ 4 \ PR
~ - AN - ~
COWN  ES\STON \ S5
\ Ay
. \ 20NNG: PP \\ ot TS o Tt ™™ Py ¥ 417
5 N BEVATE SO SXETCH ARE DERIVED FROM ONTADO
PIN 52148=0479(LT} \\ \\ A s oo BRa20i 29083 v
\\ va HEREOW 1S BASED DN FELD WORN CONPLETID
é \ \\ Tones c U anoo R
N A s 41 uAG vow DRne
AN SO A3 N,
_ o BT - concesson 5 AN e
- - =\ S aimnd - o Ro:
> ® ROAD ALLOW CF BETWEEW CONCESSIONS 4 & 5 ° N T e o el
I T o CONZESTON ¢ > SO )
ZONING: RU ] 2ZONING: RU Y A by DEVELOPMENT 8 o ADGYE FLOKD
: _— . 1] ml:.“ng 208 7m (COVOIN 78] B SURVEY FELDWORK DATED
i SEE DETAIL !
b /
- \
DETAIL i« w ) \
- < -~ = \
Scale = 1:400 N N \ OF FLOCD PLAN ZOKE
3 % < \ IR 2R Br=LAW WP
3 3 O PIN 8214 -0479(LT) \
2 3 = R !
-~ g § \
% ! }
) §§§ z NG PP
~N
3
Y 2z e Ru
ZONING RU J g
Q g
S g
3
< e &
§ FLO0D CONTOUR OF
~ SLEVATON = 2007 10
<
3 /?t/%
[ s =
S
&
15.0m o,
CONCESSION 5 = 2 CONCESSION 5
304
Tt ROAD ALLOWA o BETWEEN CONCE SIONS 4 & S
——— L,
~.
S
CONCESSION ! CONCESSION 4
[ \
x Ay
§§ ZONING: RU
3 f 3 = ' anv o, 2028
ZONING: RU § §§ % § TS ISNOTA PN SURVEY KD SUALL NOT 6 USD CRCEPT
© e wuas sy G TED NO PERSON SHALL
P S L L R
™~
i3 \
! Lor s ONTARIO LAND SURVEYORS
rul\;: PLANNERS
144-0470(LT) 69000+ L] Wy & SOUTH RWER
SHED Whmﬂw““ PIH 1CS
oumouse Phone.705-789-4171

Fax 705-789-1097

Email infoBej  masu com

FI1829-250F 0w



e

THE UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

BY-LAW #48-2025

(Site Plan Agreement with William Robert Charles Johnstone)

Being a By-law to authorize the execution of a Site Plan Agreement between
William Robert Charles Johnstone (‘owner’) and the Municipal Corporation of the
Township of Armour with respect to Lot 24 of Plan M237; Part of Road Allowance
in Front of Part Lot 21 Concession 4 Armour Part 10 42R7266; Armour, closed by

By-law 24-1981, all located and known locally as 868 Skyline Drive on the east
shore of Three Mile Lake, Township of Armour, District of Parry Sound. (“subject
lands”).

WHEREAS it is deemed expedient to enter into a Site Plan Agreem nt with the
owner with respect to building a new detached dwelling on the subject lands;

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE UNICIPAL CORPORATION OF
THE TOWNSHIP OF AR OUR HEREBY ENACTS as follows:

1. THAT the Mayor and Municipal Clerk are hereby authorized to enter into a
Site Plan Agreement with the owner that is substantially in the form attached
hereto; and

2. THAT the Mayor and Municipal Clerk are hereby instructed not to complete
the execution of the Site Plan Agreement until there is received from the
owner's solicitor a letter confirming that Paragraph 2 of the Site Plan
Agreement has been complied with by the owner.

3. THAT the Clerk of the Township of Armour is hereby authorized o make any
minor modifications or corrections of an administrative, numeric, grammatic,
semantic or descriptive nature or kind to the by-law and schedule(s) as may
be deemed necessary after the passage of this by-law, where such
modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of he by-law.

Read in its entirety, approved,
signed and the seal of the
Corporation affixed thereto and
finally passed in open Council
this 22" day of July, 2025.

Rod Ward, Mayor

Charlene Watt, Clerk



THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR
SITE PLAN AGREEMENT
(William Robert Charles Johnstone)
THIS AGREEMENT made in triplicate this  day of , 2025.

BETWEEN:

THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

(hereinafter called the "Township")
of the FIRST PART,

-AND -
WILLIAM ROBERT CHARLES JOHNSTONE
(hereinafter called the "Owner")
of the SECOND PART.
WHEREAS the lands affected by this Agreement are the lands described in
Schedule “A” hereto annexed, and are herein referred to as the “said lands”;
WHEREAS the Council of the Township has designated the lands described in

Schedule “A” to this Agreement as being within a site plan control area as provided for

by the Armour Township Official Plan and Section 41 of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990;

NOW THEREFORE, THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH that in consideration of

the premises and for other good and valuable consideration and the sum of Two

Dollars ($2.00) of lawful money of Canada now paid by the Township to the Owner (the

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged), THE TOWNSHIP AND THE OWNER
HEREBY COVENANT AND AGREE WITH ONE ANOTHER AS FOLLOWS:
1. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT
a. Description of Lands - The lands affected by this Agreement are the said
lands.
b. Conformity with Agreement - The Owner covenants and agrees that no
work shall be performed on the said lands or on other lands of the
Township except in conformity with the provisions of this Site Plan
Agreement hereinafter referred to.

c. Reliance Upon Representations - The Owner acknowledges that:



i. He has made representations to the Township that he will complete
all works required in accordance with the aforesaid Site Plan
Agreement; and

ii. The Township has entered into this Agreement in reliance upon
these representations.

d. Schedules Attached - The following Schedules are attached to this

Agreement:
Schedule “A” - Descriptions of Lands
Schedule “B” - Site Plan

CONDITIONS PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT BY TOWNSHIP

a. Prior to the execution of this Agreement by the Township, the Owner

shall:

i. Taxes - have paid all municipal tax bills issued and outstanding
against the said lands; and

ii. Land Ownership - be the registered owner in fee simple of the
lands described in Schedule “A”, and that there will be no
encumbrances registered against said lands which will have priority
to this Site Plan Agreement when registered.

DRIVEWAY ENTRANCE

a. The Owner will construct and install, at its expense, a driveway entrance
for the lot to provide access from the road known as Skyline Drive.

CONDITIONS PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF PERMITS

a. The Owner acknowledges and agrees that no building permit will be
issued on the said lot until the Owner has entered into this Site Plan
Agreement with the Township under Section 41 of the Planning Act with
the Site Plan drawing attached as Schedule “B” showing:

(i) all lot boundaries, adjacent rights of way, road allowances
and water bodies; and

(ii) location of proposed buildings and structures including



docks, driveways, sewage and water systems, and storm
water management and siltation control facilities together
with setbacks to the lot lines for all proposed buildings,
structures and sewage systems.
The Site Plan attached as Schedule “B” and all construction arising from
the issuance of a Building Permit or Permits shall be in conformity with the
terms of this Agreement.
Easements - The Owner has filed with the Municipal Solicitor, in
registerable form, any easements required for electrical or storm drainage
purposes including a Postponement of Mortgage/Charge document with

respect to any Mortgages registered in priority to the easement.

5. SPECIAL PROVISIONS

a.

Prior to constructing any new docking facilities or any works or
undertakings that will have 15m?2 (162 sq. ft.) or more in physical contact
with the lakebed of Three Mile Lake, the lot Owner agrees to contact the
provincial Ministry of Natural Resources & Forestry and, where Armour
Township determines that impacts to fish and fish habitat under the
Eisheries Act cannot be avoided, the Owner also agrees to contact the
federal Department of Fisheries and Oceans to ensure that all
construction is done in accordance with applicablg legislation. Further, the
Owner agrees that any repair or structural work involving dock stringers or
cribs above or below the waterline requires a Building Permit from the
Township of Armour.

The Owner agrees that not more than two septic or filter bed sewage
systems will be constructed on the lot.

The Owner agrees that within the upland forested area of the lot, including
the forest under-storey, in accordance with Armour Township By-law No.

21-2020, no clear-cutting will be done and the construction site will be



limited to selective cutting of existing vegetation, thereby ensuring

preservation and enhancement of the landscape.

6. REGISTRATION OF SITE PLAN AGREEMENT

a.

The Owner consents to the registration of this Agreement by the Township
upon the title of the said lands. The Owner further agrees to execute such
further and other Instruments and Documents as may be required by the

Township for the purpose of giving effect to this Agreement.

7. INDEMNIFICATION FROM LIABILITY AND RELEASE

a.

The Owner covenants and agrees with the Township on behalf of itself, its
successors and assigns, to indemnify and save harmless the Township,
its servants and agents from and against any and all actions, suits, claims
and demands whatsoever which may arise either directly or indirectly by
reason of any work performed by the Owner or on its behalf in connection
with the carrying out of the provisions of this Agreement.

The Owner further covenants and agrees to release and forever discharge
the Township from and against all claims, demands, causes of actions, of
every nature and type whatsoever that may arise either as a result of the
failure of the Township to carry out any of its obligations under this
Agreement, or, as a result of the Township performing any municipal work
on the said lands or the adjacent properties which may damage or
interfere with the works of the Owner, provided that such damage or
interference was not caused as a result of negligence on the part of the

Township, its servants or agents.

8. TIME OF THE ESSENCE

a.

The parties hereto agree that time shall be of the essence in this

Agreement.

9. ESTOPPEL OF OWNER

The Owner agrees to not call into question directly or indirectly in any

proceeding whatsoever, in law or in equity, or before any administrative



10.

11.

12.

tribunal, the right of the Township to enter into this Agreement and to
enforce each and every term, covenant and condition herein contained
and this Agreement may be pleaded as an estoppel against the Owner in
any such proceedings.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

a. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by an instrument
in writing signed by the parties hereto or by their successors or assigns.

b. This Agreement and the Schedules attached hereto constitute the entire
Agreement between the parties and neither party is bound by any
representation, warranty, promise, agreement or inducement not
embodied herein or therein.

c. There shall be no change in the Schedules attached hereto, or in any Site
Plan accepted by the Township or others, unless such proposed changes
have been submitted to, and approved by, the Township.

ATTACHED SCHEDULES

a. It is agreed that everything included in this Agreement and the schedules
attached thereto shall be included in and form part of this Agreement.

INTERPRETATION

a. The parties agree that in interpreting the provisions of this Agreement:

i. “Owner” where used in this Agreement, and in addition to its
accepted meaning, means and includes an individual, an
association, a partnership or an incorporated company.
Wherever the singular is used in this Agreement it shall be
construed as including the plural, and wherever the
masculine is used in this Agreement it shall be construed as
including the feminine and neutral genders.

ii. All covenants, rights, advantages, privileges, immunities,
powers and things hereby secured to the Township shall be

equally secured to and exercisable by its successors and



assigns as the case may be.

ii. All covenants, liabilities and obligations entered into and
imposed hereunder upon the Owner shall be equally binding
upon its heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, or
successors and assigns as the case may be, and that all
such covenants and liabilities and obligations shall be joint
and several.

THIS AGREEMENT shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon each of the
parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on
the following dates:

By the Owner on this  day of , 2025

In the presence of:

Signature of Witness William Robert Charles Johnstone

By the Municipal Corporation of the Township of Armour on this day of , 2025

THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR

Mayor
Rod Ward

Municipal Clerk
Charlene Watt

| / we have the power to bind the Corporation



SCHEDULE "A"

THIS IS SCHEDULE “A” TO THE SITE PLAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR
AND
WILLIAM ROBERT CHARLES JOHNSTONE

DESCRIPTION

The lands subject of this Agreement are known as Lot 24 of Plan M237; Part of Road
Allowance in Front of Part Lot 21 Concession 4 Armour Part 10 42R7266; Armour,
closed by By-law 24-1981, all located and known locally as 868 Skyline Drive on the
east shore of Three Mile Lake, Township of Armour, District of Parry Sound.



SCHEDULE "B"

THIS IS SCHEDULE “B” TO THE SITE PLAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR
AND
WILLIAM ROBERT CHARLES JOHNSTONE

SITE PLAN FOR
WILLIAM ROBERT CHARLES JOHNSTONE

The Site Plan being one drawing number F1803-24F prepared by E. J. Williams
Surveying Limited, released on June 12, 2025 and stamped received by the Township
of Armour on June 13, 2025 is hereby incorporated by reference and forms part of this
Agreement. A copy of the said Site Plan may be viewed at the municipal office of the
Township of Armour during business hours.



LOT STA
FEATURE
PIN 52147-0240(LT)
SHED AND LANDING
PRIVY
oock
MOBILE TRAILER
PROPOSED BULOING AND

LOT COVERAGE

- go“‘
pﬂ“¢\ oo™
of ‘
< & Y
QI"‘-
o . *ﬁ“ﬂd‘ >
\\l' \’/ EYE I S M
-c{ LT
- - d-
s 5’?
PP £8
o £
Poties 3.0m 23
=% Minimum 8oy
~ Side Yord ST
L Zoning Setbac - v
»

7

——————
_ -
-
9®_~
®.
£
]
]
<
~
3.0m
Minimum
Side Yord

Zoning Setback P
Lot #
t B 3 1 9

W\

SKETCH FOR SITE PLAN
PURPOSES

3 0 3 [ 9 12 15 metres

THE INTENDED PLOT SIZE OF THIS PLAN IS 32mm IN WIDTH
BY 559mm IN HEIGHT WHEN PLOTTED AT A SCALE OF 1

: 300
LEGEND:
DENOTES D POLE
DENOTES GUY LINE ANCHOR
L] DENO SURVEY MONUMENT FOUND
o] DENOTES SURVEY MONUMENT PLANTED
™ DENOTES BUSHLINE
siB DENOTES STANDARD IRON BAR
ssi8 ENOTES SHORT STANDARD IRON BAR
-] DENOTES IRON BAR
DENOTES SUBDIVISION
DENOTES SHORELINE FRONTAGE
— DENOTES OVERLAND WATERFLOW

DENOTES ERIAL SERVICE RE
-] DENOTES D STAKE SET BY CUENT

Key Plan R
Scale 1:1 e YV,
™
¥ LN 4
yine w \
» 4
Ko N
<
a\fﬂ
¥ o Drive
Subject Lond

THREE MILE LAKE

METRIC:

DISTANCES SHOWN THIS SKETCH ARE IN METRES AND CAN BE
CONVERTED TO FEET 8Y OIMDING BY 0.3048

INFORMATION SHO  HEREON IS BASED ON FIELD WORK COMPLETED
SEPTEMBER 25, 2024

ZONING: LAKESHORE RESIDENT  (LR)

MUNICIPAL ADDRESS: B8B SKYLINE DRIVE

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

0
Concret
j | Fvlun 3 °"wgefll.“a@
7 rot lﬂs g
Prqﬁmd CI: [ Zoning: LR
Z Ing: R -] 8 ‘m Landin é
- |) 12.18mx8.14m .
-2 Zoning: LR od -
P ”Tl’ I N |: s t P 219
It - G | b - © Deck Futu;n
seplng
RE a® S
‘,L\ﬂ et
] e
_ et o -
4 R
L~ e e
| ot~ T paRT 1
- - g&g&% 3 PN
L 10 B8 Toumo o aR-TL0
- M WANCE
P 0
- a0 onp g ALC
e N sa
- - " Canoe Rack
- - a A f"&. - 1.3 (to be
3 : s removed)
S 0.0:
R\G\“ﬂ‘ - P e . oishReEo -
L~ of o o
0.07E .- -
Bett
| |
L4 ) “
?’\{s 0 DISTURBE . i e ‘I '|
¥ a 56l
N ' 1
P NOTERS OF e 1
e Boothouse |
Vol 4.88mx3.0 |I
4 1
4 1
’
4 1
7 t
’ |
4
4 I
< 1
’ 1
II ‘i‘ I
lﬂ‘ 2
ik 5!
|
REE 4 '
™ % gl
H
E|
|
|
1 No.
R ived )
June 13th, 2025 1
i of Amour \
1
1
1
|
|
|
HEIGHT PROPOSED t
(METRES) AREA (SQUARE METRES) AREA (  ARE METRES) 3d
25752 2057.5¢ =
339 10.94 10.94 '
1.82 1.52
86.24
20.49 29.49

PIN 52147-0240
l';OT 24, RE& 1";ERED PLAN M-237

CN 4
DESIGNATED AS P T 10, PLAN 42R-7266
- SHIP QF ARMOUR
- DISTRICT QOF PARRY SOUND

REVISED AS CUENT C  MENTS
RELEASED FOR COMMENT
REVISION

CAUTL :THIS IS NOT A PLAN

JUNE 12, 2025
OCTOBER 28, 2024
DATE

SURVEY AND SHALL NOT BE USED EXCEPT
FOR THE PURPOSE INDICATED IN THE TITLE BLOCK.

E.J. WILLIAMS SURVEYING LIMITED. NO PERSON SHALL
COPY, REPRODUCE, DISTRIBUTE ALTER THIS PLAN IN

WHOLE IN PART  THOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF
€.J. WILLIAMS SURVEYING LIMITED.

@ EJWn

LIAMS
SURVEYING LIMITED

ONTARIO LAND SURVEYORS
PLANNERS

HUNTSVILLE & SOUTH RIVER
Main Office: 387 Muskoko Rd 3N P1H 1C5
Huntsville, Ontorio
Phone:705-789-4171
Fox:705-789-1097
info@ejwilliomssurveying.com

Email.

F1803- 248F.dwg

T OF ORIGINAL SHORE ROAD ALLOWANCE IN LYING FRONT QF
LOT 21,CONCESS!



@

TRI COUNCIL INFORMAL SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES

Wednesday, July 02, 2025 — 1:30PM

Location: Young at Heart Seniors Centre, 136 Yonge, Burk’s Falls

Attendance: Armour Township: Councillor Wendy Whitwell, CAO Dave Gray
Ryerson Township: Councillor Delynne Patterson, CAO/Treasurer Brayden
Robinson
Village of Burk’s Falls: Deputy Mayor Sean Cotton, CAO/Clerk Denis Duguay

Discussion Items:
Meeting called to order at 1:30 pm
Shared Services Agreements

Library Agreement review

The Committee reviewed the current composition of the Library Board and discussed the
feasibility of reducing the fumber of Members-at-Large to four (4). Establishing clear
guidelines for board applicants was also considered. In addition, the Committee explored the
possibility of limiting Council members’ service on the Board to a maximum of two (2) terms.

The conversation then shifted to funding considerations, including a potential transition to a
population-based funding formula, similar to the existing fire services agreement. The
inclusion of McMurrich/Monteith as a voting member and formal partner on the Library Board
was proposed. In light of potential expanded regional collaboration, the Committee also
discussed renaming the library (e.g., “Burk’s Falls and Area”) and exploring the development
of a district-level model for library service delivery. It was further suggested that the
agreement include a clause outlining a structured, step-by-step mediation process to be
followed before any partner withdraws, modeled after the approach used in the fire services
agreement.

Concerns were also raised regarding the library’s current bookkeeping processes. The
Committee considered the option of providing transition training for the CEO to assume this
responsibility in the near future. Lastly, the Committee examined Section 3(d) of the existing
agreement, focusing on the timing of payments. A proposal was made for the first payment to
be made by January 30th, with the remaining proportional payments due within 30 days of
each municipality’s annual budget approval. The committee representative sitting on the
library board will seek clarification as to the timing of payments

Next Step:
Armour CAO (Dave Gray) to draw up a library agreement with Ryerson CAO and Burk’s Falls
CAO’s input before presenting to Council’s



New Library Build

The committee discussed the slow progress of the project and the ongoing uncertainty felt by
the library board and municipal partners. To help move the project forward, members
considered the possibility of each of the three (3) partners establishing individual reserve
funds for the new building. Additionally, to maintain momentum, the committee discussed
having partners commit to a targeted build date of 2030 by council resolution.

Next Meeting:
August 5 @ 1:30 PM - Burk’s Falls Senior Centre

Adjournment



©

Charlene Watt (Deeug Clerk)

From: Dave Gray, Ec.D. <director@explorealmaguin.ca>
Sent: July 15, 2025 11:25 AM
To: Beth Morton; Margaret Ann MacPhail; Cheryl Marshall; Vicky Roeder-Martin; Councillor

Wendy Whitwell; Chris Hope, Mayor; Denis Duguay; Caitlin Haggart; Tim Bryson; Justine
Leveque; Nancy Austin; Chris Nicholson; Jennifer Martin; Don McArthur; Brenda Scott;
Sheri Norman; Chief Adminstrative Officer; Wendy Whitwell

Cc Courtney Metcalf; Sarah Cooke; Nancy Field; Dan Robertson; Mayor Rod Ward;
Charlene Watt (Deputy Clerk); Sandra Connell

Subject: RE: June 26th ACED Meeting Agenda Package - Changed location

Attachments: Request for Support in Principle - 2025 ACED Signage Plan Applications.pdf

Good morning ACED Members!

ACED Staff are working through two applications to support the ACED Brand Alignment and Regional Signage project
and are requesting letters of support in principle from |l memb r municipaliti s which will be included in the
application. The applications will take some time to finalize; however, | am hoping to get this in front of Councils and
the Chamber Board at their next regular meetings. | know we have discussed this project quite a bit at the Board level
and one point that | would like to clarify for all members is that this project does not require additional funding from
partners — there has been some confusion around that in the past. If this project is approved for funding, the ACED
reserve will cover the contribution on behalf of all members. If it is not approved, the project will not move forward.

Please let me know if you have any questions or require more information.

Thanks,

Dave Gray, Ec.D.
Director of Economic Development
Almaguin Community Economic Development

(705)571-1564 | Director@ExploreAlmaguin.ca

ALMAGUIN COMMUNIT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

- K soLLTioN —



ALMAGUIN COM NITY E EVELOPMENT
Box 533 - 56 Ontario St. Burk’s Falls ON. POA 1C0

(705)571-1564 / director@explorealmaguin.ca

July 15", 2025
Addressed to: ACED Member Organizations
Subject: Request for Support in Principle
Dear Member partner ,

ACED Staff are currently developing applications requesting financial support to implement
the 2024 Almaguin Signage Plan. ACED is requesting that all members review this request
at the next regular meeting and provide resolutions or letters to be included with the
application.

<<Sample Resolution Wording>>

WHEREAS <Municipality/Organization> has adopted and supported the implementation of
the 2018 Almaguin Highlands Regional Economic Development Strategic Plan and the 2021
Almaguin Brand Strategy which call for the establishment of a unified regional brand;

AND WHEREAS <Municipality/Organization> recognizes the importance of aligning physical
and digital elements within the collective brand strategy throughout the Almaguin Highlands
Region as well as the efforts of the ACED to implement the Brand Strategy;

AND WHEREAS the ACED Brand Alignment & Regional Signage Project will enhance the use
of the regional brand while promoting recreational, tourism, and business activity
throughout the region;

AND WHEREAS the ACED Members’ contribution to the project shall be funded through the
ACED reserve;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT <Municipality/Organization> herby declare their
support in principle for the ACED Brand Alignment & Regional Signage Project as well as
associated applications for financial assistance to complete the project.



Preparing for the
Future in the
Almaguin
Highlands...

Township of Armour Perspective

s Short-Term Realities

+ Medium-Term Preparation

¢ [ong-Term Vision

July 2025

Armour’s Progress Update
(Mayor’s 6-month Summary)

15

ov



Areas of Focus...

Where we as municipality can make a difference and prepare for future...

Value for
Constituents

Shared
Services

Economic
Development




Focus Area 1 - Value for Constituents )

2>
R\
A\
n ance
available
communi
se ices (libra ,
recre ~  etc)
Substantially Complete
\] °®
Overall Progress e‘\\oql
Urgency Scale B\

Updated progress — January through June 2025

By-law services serving 7 municipalities, reducing costs region-wide (staff)

Rec staff pl nning / managing annual Heritage Day Festival (staff, council)

Building Services agreement signed with McMurrich/Monteith (staff)

Emergency Management and 4-partner programs successfully completed (staff)

Kicked off community engagement and Armour branding renewal strategy (staff, council)
Roads Department North Pickerel Lake Bridge and Ferguson Road improvement projects
underway (staff)

Community safety enhancements implemented by Roads (staff, council)

vV VVVVVY



Focus Area 2 - Protection of Natural Assets

Urgency Scale

VVVYV

\
‘\“\\'3
\\e
Pr for
climate-
ch nge ‘mpact
on our
infr c ure
ay Making Progress Great Progress Substantially Complete
Overall Progress
h
wo¥!

R\

Updated progress — January through June 2025

On-going expanded Water Quality Grant Program (staff)

On-going participation with Muskoka - Integrated Watershed (council, staff)
Reviewing enhancements to septic approvals and testing (staff, council)
Re-engaged with Almaguin-wide watershed committee (council)



Focus Area 3 - Cooperation & Shared Services

Urgency Scale

VVVVVVVVVY

Complete ater . ‘s\\a‘ -

and Se er ,‘“e
Re ie ;stud

‘communal’

Great Progress Substantially Complete
Overall Progress
. |\\0‘N
ni ‘\\e

Updated progress — January through June 2025

New Fire Services agreement signed; new Library agreement in progress (staff, council)

RFP selection closed for Fire Hall build (Ryerson admin, staff)

By-law services serving 7 municipalities; setting regional standards (staff)

Implemented AMPS by-law enforcement for regional standardization & cost reduction (staff)
Activated regional agreement for OSPCA (animal control) services (staff)

Investigating expanded / improved municipal partnerships (council)

Expanded Centres of Excellence — By-Law, Emergency Management, Building (staff)
Continued transition to recycling / waste-diversion ‘producer-responsibility’ model (staff)
Reviewing enhancement to septic approvals and testing (staff, council)

Hosted Quarterly “Almaguin Mayors” meeting (council)



Focus Area 4 - Health & Wellness

Urgency Scale

vV VVV

Ad ocate for \\G"
Technolog to “e“ﬂ
support 1
healthcare
Great Progress Substantially Complete
Overall Progress
t\\O"l
e

Updated progress — January through June 2025

Active discussions with MAHC / MAOHT re: investment in Almaguin (council)

Regional Ontario Health Team renamed ‘Muskoka Almaguin Ontario Health Team’ (council)
Initial planning/design for new Health & Weliness building for AlImaguin Highlands
(staff/council)

Continued p rtnerships for Health & Wellness Centre (council/staff)



Focus Area 5 - Economic Development

Urgency Scale

VVVVVVY

Continue to
support Economic
Development
( CED)

Overall Progress

Great Progress

Substantially Complete

[}

e

Updated progress — January through June 2025

Implementing recommendations from Housing Task Force (staff, council)
Adjusting ACED funding model and regional approach (ACED, council)
Investing to make ind strial/commercial lands shovel-ready (staff, council)
Planning readiness and marketing of industrial/commercial on Highway 520 and Pegg’s Mountain (staff, council)
Supported Communit / Regional Transportation initiative (ACED, council)
Finalized region-wide branding and signage initiative (ACED, council)

New high-speed internet services roll-out in progress with private-sector partner (staff)



Focus Area 6 - Housing & Growth

Urgency Scale

Re rie
partn hip ith
SE Par Sound
Planning Board

Making Progress Great Progress Substantially Complete

Overall Progress

Updated progress — January through June 2025

Implemented smaller minimum house sizes / updated zoning by-law toward Housing
Task Force recommendations (staff)

Reviewing next steps for Official Plan / Zoning By-Law updates (staff)

Supporting nhanced community service offerings to support growth (staff, council)

a\L

i



Looking ahead.

Alma uin Highlands
regional approach...

Expand Armour ideas and approach to
a more region-wide view...



Alma uin-

Representative
Level

Staff
Level

wide A reements /Coo eration

Al

Embr ¢ °"““°“”e
13

Planning &
Bui d ng
s

Ro ds

Existing provincial structures / funding

Non-o tional/Re ion-wide

Aligned with Province
Regional Policy Development
Regional Planning Policies

Alignment with Existing Structures
(healthcare, housing)

Supports Centres of Excellence

Centres of Excellence
Service Agreements
Maximizing Efficiencies

Staff-managed



Building on Existing Capabilities

Service Offering Current Sharing

5 Fire Stations / Managed b

Fire Fire Chiefs

uidi g
t/Managed

Recreation, Par s & Trails Ad hoc s aring of staff

10 municipal partnersin
Almaguin Highlands Health
Council

Healthand ellness

- inder

4 municip litiesin shared
agreement/ anagedby
rmour

mergenc Planning

eemen s
- ncil,;so . e

Roads Ad hoc /ta tical agreements
None
Arenas 2 ri-Councils

Potential Further

Sharing

On-going

o on Official Plan Zoming,

By- aws/
Region-wi e entre
E ellence

Region-wide Centre of
Excellence

Region-wide e treo
E cellence/Com on By- aws

Ful integration
partnersin us o
OHT

R gion-wid Centr of
xcellence

Almaguin

Region- ‘de Centre of
xcellence

Review of new
builds/renos/existing facilit'es

Expansion to Shared Se ices/
“Mutual Aid”
Ex ans’ontoneighbo ing
unicipal'ties
Poticies and procedures

Region-wide Centre of
xcellence

ith healthcare

Almaguin-wide
Approaches

Sh red equipment and facili ‘es

Standardized echno ogy
Sta ' ardized OP/Z '
Sta d rd epotting

Re ource sharing
Program sharing

Standardized By aws
Resource sharing

Agreed cost-sharingand ! n -
term strategy

esource sha ing

Resource sharing

e ion-w de approach ogan
efficiencies

Standardized technology
Resource sharing

Strategyvia Hous'ng Task Force
Reso rce sharing

Cross-region purchasing power



AHC Political Leaders Forum
INUTES of Thursday, July 10, 2025 at 0900-1000hrs

MUS OKA ALGONQUIN

HEACTHCARE

Via Zoom
“R" = Regrets; “v” = Confirmed Attendance
INVITED POLITICAL LEADERS:
Scott Aitchison, MP Graydon Smith, MPP v' | Jeff Lehman, District Chair v | Rick Maloney, Mayor — BB
Nancy Alcock, Mayor — Huntsville Peter Kelley, Mayor — Mus. Lakes ¥ | Terry Glover, Mayor — Lake of Bays Heidi Lorenz — Gravenhurst v
Peter Koetsier, Mayor — Georg. Bay Chris Hope, Mayor — Burk's Falls Rod Ward, Mayor — Armour ¥ | Tim Bryson, Mayor — Strong
Sam Dunnett, Mayor — Magnetawan Jim Coleman, ayor — South River Norm Hofstetter, ayor — Perry Cheryl Philip, Mayor — Kearney
Liz Danielsen, Mayor — Algonquin Vicky Roeder-Martin, Councillor — . . Delynne Patterson, Councillor —
Highlands McMurrich/Monteith Justine Leveque, Mayor ~ Sundridge Ryerson
Bryan McCabe, Mayor — Joly Dan Armour, Deputy Mayor — HV Brenda.Rhodes, Deputy ayor — BB v
UNICIPAL STAFF PARTICIPANTS:
Note: All Muskoka and East Parry Sound CAOs and Clerks invited; record captures those who attended only
Stephen Rettie, CAO — Bracebridge v Denise Corry, CAO — Huntsville v | David Pink, CAO — Muskoka Lakes ¥ | Julie Stevens, CAO - District v

Norm Barrette, Health Services v

Greg Mariotti, CAO — Georgian Bay Commissioner — District

USKOKA ALMAGUIN ONTARIO HEAL HTEA PAR ICIPANTS:

Keith Cross, MAOHT Alliance Jodi Phillips, AOHT Alliance
Council Co-Chair Council Co-Chair
FOUNDATION PARTICIPANTS:
) Katherine Craine — HDMH
v v
Leah Walker, SMMH Foundation Foundation

AHC PARTICIPANTS:

Dave Uffelmann, Board Chair gzgﬁ, Clarkson-Ladd, Board Vice v | Cheryl Harrison, President & CEO v EerT:f? led Abdel-Razek, Chief R
. . . Mary Silverthorn, VP, People, Bobbie Ciark, Director of
Blaatir:eentGSeeorrvgig,e:PdL';?tgg(rgt%ngare’ R g:::?;;img;e\f/g' n(a:zzz?:lraotf?icer v | Communications & Stakeholder v | Communications & Stakeholder v
! Relations and Chief HR Officer Relations
. L Savannah Madueno . - -
! v
Allyson Snelling, Communications Communications Amy Carriere, Executive Assistant
pc Notes from Discussion Follow Up Required
1. Welcome & Introductions The Board Chair introduced himself, Vice Chair Carla Ladd and participants from MAHC.
— Dave Uffelmann




2.

3.

4.

2025-2026 Board of Directors
— Dave Uffelmann

2025-2030 Strategic Plan
— Cheryl Harrison

Operational Update
— Cheryl Harrison

An overview was given of the Board Awards of Excellence ceremony that was held separately from the Annual

eneral Meeting (AG ). D. Uffeimann shared that all 21 nominees were celebrated along with the four winners.
Despite initial concerns about time, the event was well received, highlighting the many outstanding contributions
across the organization.

During the AGM, five new board members were welcomed, each bringing diverse backgrounds and expertise:

Beel Yakub: Senior banking and IT professional, owner of three local McDonalds franchises

Ruth Chalmers: Retired nurse and VP in both hospital and long-term care operations

Don Macintosh: Born and raised in Bracebridge, lawyer in Toronto who is transitioning to retirement
ichael Righetti: Paramedic working across multiple health systems

Dr. Rohit Gupta (ex officio): SMMH surgeon and VP of the Credentialed Staff Association.

A ditionally, two community representatives remain as Committee Appointee Members:

e Alexandra Santos: A medical student with experience working with Indigenous communities and a passion
for local care
e Rob McPhee: Brings strong cybersecurity expertise

T e organization also recognized five retiring directors, including oreen Miller, who is succeeded by Carla as
Chair of the Local Share Committee. Carla will soon engage members as MAHC awaits approval of its capital
redevelopment Stage 1.3 Functional Program submission.

F nally, financial pressures remain a key concern. Despite Ontario hospitals being the most efficient hospitals in the
country, MAHC included, we face increasing demands due to an aging population. While support from government
and stakeholders is vital, MAHC is also committed to further efficiency and innovation to navigate ongoing fiscal
challenges.

C. Harrison stated that MAHC has completed a refresh of its Strategic Plan following a highly collaborative, year-
long process. Insights were drawn from extensive engagement with community members and stakeholders,
particularly during capital redevelopment discussions. This input shaped a forward-looking direction for MAHC.

K y highlights include:

o New ission: "Together we provide outstanding integrated care to support people to live their healthiest
lives." This reflects a shift from a purely illness-focused model to one that emphasizes wellness and
integration within the broader health system.

* New Vision: "Transforming Healthcare Together"

Inspired by the momentum of capital redevelopment, this vision emphasizes innovation and partnership
over the next decade.

e Strategi Pillars for the next five years:

1. Quality Care and Safety

2. Partnerships and Collaboration
3. Innovative Future

4. Our Team is Our Strength

C Harrison updated the group on the following operational items:

RI Opening
MAHC officially opened its new MRI service this week, marking a major milestone in expanding local diagnostic
capabilities. Appreciation was extended to all levels of political and community support that helped bring this state-
of-the-art technology to the region.

Emergency Department & Occupancy Trends

D ily monitoring of emergency department activity has shown positive trends, with a decline in admissions in the
Emergency Department, indicating improved patient flow to inpatient units. Occupancy rates trending slightly
downward are now typically between 100% and 110%, which aligns with the 2025-26 budget assumptions. There is
a focus on mana in occu anc to avoid s endin funds on unfunded beds.



7.

Capital Redevelopment Update
— Alasdair Smith

Update from Foundations
— Leah Walker & Katherine Craine

Round Table of Healthcare-
Related ltems

ALC (Alternate Level of Care) Improvements

Significant progress has been made in reducing ALC patients from about 25 per site last year to 25 total across
both sites today. This reflects strong collaboration both internally and with community partners. It is a clear indicator
o transformative care and better patient placement.

Obstetrical ConsolidationatS H
AHC continues ongoing discussions with government partners around the temporary consolidation. There will be
f rther communication in the near future to update the community.

Heart Function Clinic
T e clinic reopened at the South Muskoka site.

| digenous Patient Navigator
In conjunction wit the Barrie Area Native Advisory Circle (BANAC), MAHC has welcomed a new Indigenous
Patient Navigator Sarah Cunningham. Sarah will support First Nations patients during their care journey.

MAHC has resumed productive discussions with the Ministry of Health, Ontario Health, and Infrastructure Ontario
regarding the Stage 1.3 functional programming submission, following delays caused by the recent election.

A recent meeting focused on clinical programs received highly positive feedback, with officials expressing that they
w re "delighted” by the forward-thinking and positive approach. The MAHC team is optimistic and is aiming to
maintain momentum to advance the project swiftly.

South uskoka Hospital Foundation

L. Walker shared that the two hospital foundations continue to work closely on redevelopment campaign branding,
w th early previews of the look, feel, and messaging already shared. Initial discussions around naming opportunities
have begun, and the campaign cabinet is expected to be finalized by year-end, aligning with the Ministry’s response
to Stage 1.3.

With summer in full swing, efforts are focused on engaging seasonal donors and residents, including island visits.
Additionally, the foundation is celebrating its 45th anniversary with a soiree on August 21st, and all are warmly
invited to attend.

H ntsville Hospital Foundation

K. Craine seconded that the foundation teams are working closely and collaboratively on the upcoming
redevelopment campaign.

A silent launch of the campaign brand was held at a recent event on Bigwin Island, helping to advance awareness
among seasonal residents who are already familiar with the hospital's redevelopment plans. The event also
introduced the campaign cabinet and several campaign ambassadors, signaling early momentum. The focus is now
on securing leadership gifts, including initial $1M+ commitments to build strong early campaign support.

In parallel, the re ent MRI campaign launch and the opening of the MRI suite have generated excitement. The new
space has provided staff and physicians with a glimpse of what the future hospital environment could look like being
modern, spacious, and functional. This progress has further energized supporters, with growing anticipation around
the Ministry’s app oval of the Stage 1.3 submission.

K. Cross gave an update that the three new partners have joined MAOHT: Helping Hands Orillia, Mind-Aid, and
Community Living Huntsville. A leadership change has occurred at the Collaborative Steering Committee with Dr.
David Mathies stepping down and Diane George, VP, Patient Services at AHC, stepping in as co-chair.

A palliative care ¢ ach has been hired on contract to assess service delivery across the region, identify gaps,
provide education, and work toward process standardization.

It was reported that over the past year, 24-25 new family physicians and nurse practitioners have been recruited
with some of them replacing retirees. This was done under the efforts of recruiter David Gravelle whose term is
nearing completion. Plans are underway to renew his position for another three years, given his successful work
a ross both hospital and community settings.

In response to the federal and provincial commitment of over $2 billion for primary care renewal, a planning table
has been established with administrative and clinical leaders. The group is preparing a proposal for the second
round of funding opportunities to help reduce the number of unattached patients in the region.



J. Lehman thanked the group for the update and applauded the new redevelopment capital campaign branding. He,
in addition, thanked C. Harrison for sharing a detailed analysis of Alternate Level of Care (ALC) reductions, offering
valuable insight into the underlying data and contributing factors. The positive trend in reducing ALC numbers is
recognized as a collaborative achievement, with MAHC credited for effectively pivoting in several areas to support
this outcome. Further clarification was sought on how the reductions were achieved and whether the improvements
are systemic and sustainable or if they may be temporary. C. Harrison emphasized that managing ALC is complex
and does require constant focus. She feels that the success comes from a combination of factors including
increased access to transitional care options, such as beds at The Alexander, a significant reduction in ALC to
palliative cases due to appropriate placement and early identification of at-risk patients, and a proactive approach
by care teams. Additionally, it requires dedicated staff to support complex discharges, especially for patients facing
both social and medical barriers. It was highlighted that Diane George has been leading regular ALC rounds and
has brought together care partners like Home and Community Care to explore every possible discharge option. As
a result, it was expressed that reductions are sustainable with ongoing maintenance and with exploring other
opportunities such as adult day programs and cross-sector collaboration.

R. Ward thanked K. Cross for the work done on the name change for the Muskoka & Area Ontario Health Team
(MAOHT) which is now Muskoka Almaguin Ontario Health Team. He expressed the positivity of this change for the
Almaguin community.

Adjournment

The meeting adjourned at 9:31 a.m. The next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, October 9t at 9 a.m.




RECEIVED
JuL 10 2025

TOWNSHIP OF ARMOUR
Support for Making the NORDS Pilot Program Permanent and Expanding Program
Eligibility
WHEREAS the Northern Ontario Resource Development Support (NORDS) pilot program

was introduced to help Northern Ontario municipalities address infrastructure pressures
resulting from natural resource sector activities;

AND WHEREAS the funding provided through the NORDS pilot was very well received by
the municipal sector, as it delivered timely and much-needed financial support to many
communities across the North;

AND WHEREAS the program has allowed municipalities, such as the City of North Bay, to
strategically stack multi-year allocations in order to support large-scale infrastructure
initiatives critical to community development and economic growth;

AND WHEREAS the NORDS pilot program has clearly demonstrated its value and
effectiveness in helping Northern municipalities address the infrastructure challenges tied
to resource development and extraction;

AND WHEREAS rural and northern municipalities are also facing infrastructure
degradation resulting from the increasing size and frequency of agricultural machinery and
activity, which is currently outside the scope of the pilot;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the [Insert Municipality Name] strongly
urges the Government of Ontario to make the Northern Ontario Resource Development
Support (NORDS) program a permanent fixture of its support to Northern municipalities;

AND FURTHER THAT the Province consider expanding program eligibility to recognize the
significant impact that agricultural equipment and operations have on municipal
infrastructure, particularly in rural communities;

AND FURTHER THAT municipalities be encouraged to continue utilizing the ability to stack
NORDS allocations over multiple years to support the planning and delivery of major
infrastructure projects;

AND FURTHER THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Minister of Northern
Economic Development and Growth, the Minister of Agriculture, Food and Agribusiness,
the Minister of Infrastructure, the Minister of Natural Resources, local MPP, the Association
of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO), the Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities
(FONOM), Northwestern Ontario Municipal Association, Rural Ontario Municipalities
Association and all Northern Ontario municipalities for their awareness and support.

-KezoL.otTiond —

~

U

2



G

Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities JUL 1 0 2025
P

June 30, 2025

The Right Honourable Paul Carney
Prime Minister of Canada

80 Wellington Street

Ottawa, ON K1A 0A2

SENT BY EMAIL: PM@p .gc.ca

The Honourable Doug Ford
Premier of Ontario

Legislative Building, Queen’s Park
Toronto, ON M7A 1A1

SENT BY EMAIL: __emier@ontar’o.ca

Dear Prime Minister Carney and Premier Ford,

On behalf of the Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities (FONOM) and the 110
municipalities we represent across Northeastern Ontario, I write to express our deep concern
with the recent announcement by the U.S. Department of Commerce, issued on April 4, 2025,
which proposes a preliminary combined countervailing and anti-dumping duty rate of 34.45%
on Canadian softwood lumber—more than double the current rate.

This significant escalation in tariffs, expected to take effect in July, poses a direct and immediate
threat to the economic well-being of communities across Northeastern Ontario. Our region’s
forest sector is a foundational pillar of the local economy—supporting thousands of direct and
indirect jobs and underpinning many municipal tax bases. Communities such as Timmins,
Hearst, Kapuskasing, Cochrane, Temiskaming Shores, and many others have built their
resilience and growth around this industry.

Since the expiration of the last Softwood Lumber Agreement in 2016, Canadian producers have
faced unfair and punitive duties. These trade actions have now cost the industry over $10 billion
CAD, undermining confidence, investment, and the future viability of a sector critical to both
our regional and national economies. The increased rate threatens to exacerbate these impacts
and further destabilize the forest industry at a time when we can least afford it.

Compounding this issue is the looming potential for additional tariffs on forest products
stemming from the U.S. Section 232 national security review, which could deepen the
uncertainty and further harm communities throughout Northern Ontario.

We urge both the federal and provincial governments to respond decisively by:

» Making the resolution of the softwood lumber dispute a top priority in ongoing bilateral
trade discussions with the United States.

615 Hardy Street North Bay, ON P1B 8S2 Tel: (705) 478-7672
Email: Website:

~— KE0LUTION —



The forest sector in Northern Ontario is vital to our economic survival and to national priorities
such as addressing housing needs, advancing clean energy, and promoting sustainable
development. However, our region cannot continue to bear the brunt of unfair trade measures

Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities

Working directly with forest-sector stakeholders and municipalities to develop and
implement support measures that protect workers, communities, and local economies.
Publicly acknowledge the urgency of this issue for rural and northern Ontario, and

commit to concrete, coordinated actions.

ithout meaningful governme t action.

FONOM is committed to working alongside all levels of government and our industry partners to

protect jobs, investment, and long-term prosperity in our communities.

Sincerely,

Danny Whalen
President

cc’d

a .Ha'd arl. cca
arcs. 0o lo ski a. .c
‘c._eillo@par .gc.ca
o iic. eblac arl c.ca
e in. o and@pc.ola. g
Ge . ckford c.ola
c arla tbc amber.ca
id nn ofia.co
d alen te iskami 0 es.
onom. nfo ai .co
amo esident amo.o .ca
clo ississi i ° s.ca
admin oma.on.ca

615 Hardy Street North Bay, ON P1B 8S2

Email: Website:

Tel: (705) 478-7672



7/15/25, 10:11 AM West Nile Virus Found in East Ferris Crow - North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit

orthBa rry Sound ' istrict

[ h it
m
eu e té

distictde orth rry Sound

West Nile Virus ound in East erris Crow

Posted on Thursday, July 10, 2025

PUBLIC SERVICE ANNOUNCEMENT

EAST FERRIS, ON - The North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit (Health Unit) is
advising residents to protect themselves from mosquitoes after the Canadian Wildlife
Health Cooperative confirmed a positive case of West Nile Virus (WNV) in a local
American Crow on July 8, 2025.

This is the first confirmed case of WNV in a bird in the Health Unit region this year.
In 2024, the Health Unit was notified of WNV in three birds, and one horse tested
positive for eastern equine encephalitis, another mosquito-borne disease.

Mosquitoes infected with WNV typically transmit it to birds and other wildlife, and
occasionally to humans. While the risk of human infection is low, the Health Unit
recommends the following to reduce the risk of contracting WNV:

e Use insect repellent containing DEET or icaridin when outdoors, especially
during dusk and dawn when mosquitoes are most active.

» Wear light-coloured, long-sleeved shirts and pants.

e Ensure window and door screens are in good repair to keep mosquitoes
outside.

» Eliminate standing water around the home where mosquitoes breed, such
as in bird baths, rain gutters, and planters.

Though most people with WNV do not show symptoms, residents are advised to
monitor for symptoms. These may include fever, headache, body aches, joint pains,

https://www.myhealthunit.ca/en/news/west-nile-virus-found-in-east-ferris-crow.aspx 12



7/15/25, 10:11 AM West Nile Virus Found in East Ferris Crow - North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit

vomiting, diarrhea, or a rash. Rarely, more severe neurological symptoms can occur.
Anyone experiencing these symptoms should contact their healthcare provider.

For more information on WNV and prevention measures, visit

myhealthunit.ca/westnile.
-30 -
Media Inquiries:

Kylie Wurdell, Public Relations Specialist
P: 705-474-1400, ext. 5221 or 1-800-563-2808
E: communications@healthunit.ca

Your lifetime partner in healthy living!

Copyright 2022 North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit

https://iwww.myhealthunit.ca/en/news/west-nile-virus-found-in-east-ferris-crow.aspx

2/2



L0
BULLETIN

Ontario Protecting Against Illegal Hunting Practices

July 11, 2025
Natural Resources

The Ontario government is safeguarding the public against illegal and unsafe
hunting practices by ensuring individuals hunt with th re uired li ences.

Donald Lebert of Lighthouse Cove was found guilty at trial to hunting red foxes
without a licence and received a total of $1,000 in fines.

The court heard that in February 2023, conservation officers investigated a TIPS
complaint regarding two red foxes that were shot in the community of Lighthouse
Cove within the Municipality of Lakeshore. As a result of the investigation, it was
determined that Lebert shot and killed two red foxes with a .22 caliber rifle on his
residential property without a valid small game hunting licence.

Justice of the Peace Holly R. Debacker heard the case in the Ontario Court of
Justice, Windsor, on February 20, 2025.

To report a natural resource problem or provide information about an unsolved
case, members of the public can call the ministry TIPS line toll free at 1-877-847-
7667. You can also call Crime Stoppers anonymously at 1-800-222-TIPS. For more
information about unsolved cases, please visit ontario.ca/mnrtips.

Related Topics

Law and Safety
Ontario’s laws and related information about our legal system, emergency services,
the Ontario Provincial Police and victim services. Learn more

Rural and North

Information about the province's Far North and rural communities. Get connected
to business improvement organizations and learn more about funding and
programs that support rural, northern and Indigenous communities. Learn more

D >

1/2



2|

NEWS RELEASE

Ontario Investing $7.5 Million to Help Businesses Go
Digital

New funding will also help retailers access the tools and technologies needed to boost
productivity and sales

July 16, 2025
Economic Development, Job Creation and Trade

BRANTFORD — The Ontario government is investing $7.5 million to protect small
and m di m-si edb sine ses across the province, helping them modernize and
grow by adopting digital technologies. The Digitalization Competence Centre (DCC)
helps companies to transition and find made-in-Ontario digital solutions with
expert guidance, training and up to $115,000 in targeted grants.

“Small businesses are the backbone of Ontario’s economy, and our government is
helping more businesses embrace new technologies that will improve their
operations, ensuring they stay competitive in today's digital economy,” said Nina
Tangri, Associate Minister of Small Business. “Under the leadership of Premier Ford,
we will continue to support small businesses in priority sectors like retail, so they
can create jobs and grow the economy for everyone.”

Delivered by the Ontario Centre of Innovation (OCI), the province is investing $5
million to support the Digital _odernization and Adoption Plan (DMAP), which
helps businesses assess their digital needs and work with a consultant to create a
customized plan, with participating companies reporting $380 million in increased
revenue.

Through D AP, companies can receive a grant of up to $15,000 to match private
investment that supports planning for technology investments. Companies that
have completed a DMAP project are eligible for additional funding through the
Technology Demonstration Program which includes a grant of up to $100,000 to
match private investment in purchasing and installing new technologies that
support business growth and create jobs.

In addition, $2.5 million is being invested to support small businesses in the retail
sector in areas like online payment systems, inventory management software,
customer relationship management tools, digital marketing, cybersecurity solutions

1/4



and artificial intelligence. The new Retail Moderniza i n Project Grant will provide a
flexible grant of up to $5,000 to be matched by participants adopting new
technologies in these areas.

Ontario’s investments in the DCC are part of the government's plan to protect
Ontario and help businesses navigate an uncertain economy by building the most
competitive and resilient economy in the G7.

Quick Facts

* To date, the DCC was initially launched in 2022 and has supported 249D AP
projects in critical industries like manufacturing, information technology and
telecommunications, 45 Tech Demonstration Projects, totalling 294 grants over
both programs, building a roster of over 100 Digital Adoption Consultants and
growing the Ontario Digital Technology Vendors List to include more than 140
Ontario-based companies.

¢ To apply for the D__AP grant, businesses must be Ontario-based, for-profit
companies with up to 499 employees.

* Eligible businesses interested in the Technology Demonstration Program grant
must be Ontario-based, for-profit companies with up to 499 employees,
completed a DMAP project, and have generated at least $500,000 in annual
revenue in one of the last three tax years.

¢ To apply for the Retail Modernization Projec Gran , business must be an
Ontario-based, for-profit retail establishment with a physical store front that
has been in business for more than 1 year, generated at least $100,000 in
annual revenue and has between one to 50 employees.

Quotes

"Our government is proud to help small and medium-sized businesses, like
Brantford Finders Keepers, digitize their operations and develop strategies for
growth. Ensuring our job creators have the tools and resources they need by
strengthening and modernizing will spur competitiveness, strengthen our
economy, and protect Ontario."

- Will Bouma
MPP, Brantford—Brant

2/4



NEWS RELEASE

Ontario Protecting Communities by Expanding
Correctional Facilities

Province adding 150 beds through new modular builds

July 17, 2025
Solicitor General

THOROLD — As part of its plan to protect Ontario and keep communities safe, the
Ontario government is investing more than $180 million to increase capacity at
correctional facilities across the province. The Niagara Detention Centre in Thorold,
the Cecil Facer Youth Centre in Sudbury and the Vanier Centre for Women in Milton
will be expanded to create 150 new beds and give frontline staff the space they
need to do their jobs safely.

“Our government is taking decisive action to protect Ontario and keep dangerous
and repeat offenders off our streets,” said Solicitor General Michael Kerzner. “By
expanding correctional facilities and bringing new beds online faster, we are
strengthening our ability to hold criminals accountable and ensure that inmates
serve their sentences in secure, modern spaces.”

Bird Construction Inc. has been awarded the contract to design and build the
innovative modular expansions, with construction scheduled to begin in 2026. In
addition to new beds, the expanded facilities will offer enhanced rehabilitation
programs, including literacy, job skills and technology training.

Quick Facts

¢ Since 2024, 110 additional beds have been added to adult correctional facilities
across the province, with 665 more to be added by the end of 2026.

e The modular build facilities are delivered through Infrastructure Ontario which
aims to deliver projects more efficiently using accelerated procurement
processes and modular construction methods.

¢ Similar infrastructure expansion projects at the Thunder Bay Correctional
Centre and Kenora Jail were completed in Fall 2022.

1/3



* By 2028, the Cecil Facer Youth Centre in Sudbury will be repurposed into an
adult correctional facility to provide additional capacity and programming in
northern Ontario.

uotes

"Ontario is modernizing its procurement processes and using innovative

construction methods to help speed up the delivery of essential infrastructure.

By expanding correctional facilities in Thorold, Sudbury and Milton, our
government is enhancing the safety, capacity and sustainability of the
province’'s correctional system. Under the leadership of Premier Ford, we are
delivering on our more than $200 billion plan to build the infrastructure our
province needs to support strong and safe communities, keep workers on the
job and drive economic growth."

- Kinga Surma
Minister of Infrastructure

"This significant investment in public safety - including plans to increase
correctional capacity at the Niagara Detention Centre in Thorold - is another
example of how our government is protecting communities and protecting
Ontario. This expansion will help improve public safety in Niagara and provide
frontline correctional staff with a safe, secure and modern workplace."

- Sam Oosterhoff
MPP for Niagara West

"We are pleased to once again work with the Ontario government, supporting
its investments to increase correctional capacity and transform correctional
services. Building on our previous work in Kenora and Thunder Bay, we look
forward to leveraging our proven experience in delivering priority
infrastructure, integrating innovation with conventional on-site construction,
and maintaining our high standards of execution."

Teri McKibbon
President and CEO, Bird Construction

Additional Resources

23



)

Associa ‘on of 155 University Ave., Suite 800 Toll-free in Ontario:
Municipalities Toronto, Ontario M5H 3B7 1.877.426.6527
of Ontario Telephone: 416.971.9856 Fax: 416.971.6191

Se t by email to: min'ster.me p@ontario.ca
July 7, 2025

he Honourable Todd cCarthy
i is rofthe Environment, Conservaiona d a s
College Park, 5th Floor

77 Bay Street
T ronto, Ontario M7A 2J3

E: Amendments to the Blue Bo Regul tion E  #: 025-0009) and the Resource
Recovery and Circular Economy Act, 0 (ERO #: 025-0536)

ear Minister cCarthy,

e Association of unicipalities o Ontario (AMO consistently supported the transition to
an Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) system f r recycling, believing it holds the potential
to drive innovation and foster a truly circular economy in Ontario.

Proposed Blue Box Regulation Amendments

T e recently proposed amendments to the Blue Box Regulation raise concerns for
municipalities across the province. These proposed changes risk undermining the very goals of
the EPR framework, particularly regarding aste ‘ve sion and risks resulting in substantial new
cost impacts on municipalities.

S ecifically, the proposed delays in recovery target and modifications to away-from-home
collection ill undoubtedly impact waste diversion rates. Less material diverted means a greater
volume of waste entering municipal landfills. This coul lead to higher municipal waste
management costs due to increased transportation distances and expenses as existing landfill
capacity is consumed more rapidly. These propos s may also exacerbate Ontario's projected

I ndfill capacity crisis, which is anticipated to re ¢ its limit in less than 10 years.

Furthermore, producers were initially set 0 assume esponsibility for expanded public space
blue bin material collection, a sensible a proach iv  hat most municipal governments will no
I nger be involved in residential recycling service ~ st-2025. he proposed regulatory

a endment, however, would reverse this. Witho  d'u ted egulatory amendments, many
municipalities would be forced to decide whe her o ide recycling collection for these
unserved public spaces at theirown pense.S u  uni ipalities not step in to fill these
gaps, residents would likely combine recycli gan  aste streams. Residents rightly expect
robust recycling programs and environmental pro ‘o , creating an urgent imperative for
municipalities to fill these public spaces s rvice ps. is ual approach to blue bin collection
by both municipalities and producers is Iso inh ly inefficient.

critical concern is the proposal to remov the n d pansion of blue box services for
multi-residential buildings, schools, an specified on - erm care and retirement homes tha are
not already municipally serviced. This change rea es a ragmented "two-tiered" system here
ome Ontarians have access to recycling while th s o not. At a time when Ontario has



prioritized rapidly building more housing and long-term care, this amendment fails to pr vid
essential recycling for these ne re ident nd facilities, creating a growing service gap a a
time when we should be expanding, not limiting, recycling access. This proposed rever al also
imposes a significant municipal urden thr gh:

 Disrupted planning. Municipalities have b en actively planning and onboarding these
properties, often with reemen s based n he und rstanding that producers (PROs) wo Id
take over blue box collection by J nu 026. This amendment pulls the rug out from nde
existing plans.

» New service gaps with pressure on muni ip lities to fill. For example:

o In Guelph, many multi-residen ial pr p rties have been receiving municipal service for
garbage and organics, while paying for rivate recycling collection, with the clear
expectation that producer-funded r cycling would com ence in 2026. This amendment
leaves the city in a difficult position: oes it continue to absorb the cost of priva e
collection, or abruptly shift that burden back to building residents?

o Inlarge cities like Ottawa, th u an o ne multi-residential units are added annually.
This change immediately creates ssive and growing number of residents (potenti lly
over 5,000 in Ottawa each year) wh il be left without access to the common recycling
collection system.

While the stated intent of the proposals is to  ntain costs, A O is concerned that many of the
proposals will shift costs to the municipal taxpayer and exacerbate Ontario's landfill capacity
crisis.

Proposed Resource Recovery and Circular Economy Act (RRCEA) Amendments

AMO supports proposed changes to enhance data collection and ransparency across the
waste system and ma e regulations hat require PROs to make an offer to municipalities or
other specified entities to service small bu inesses to municipalities or other specified perso s.
These changes would support a more efficient and effective system.

Beyond AMO’s comments, we recommend your staff review additional technical analysis and
recommendations on these proposals submitted by The Regional Public orks Commissioners
of Ontario and the Municipal Waste ssocia ion.

Any questions about this submission can be directed to Karen Nesbitt, Senior Manager at

knesb tt@ontario.ca.

Sincerely,

&
Robin Jones
AMO President

cc:  Marc Peverini, Resource Recovery o ‘cy Branch, inistry of the Environment,
Conservation and Parks

2

AM



Association of
Municip lities
of Ontar'o

Proposed Changes to Ethical
Framework fo ' unicipal
Elected Offica s

AMO'S SUB| ISSIONTOTHES A ING OMMITTEE ON HERITAGE,
INFRASTRUCTU E AND CULTURAL P LIC CONCERNINGBI L9, UNICIP L
ACC UNTABILITY ACT, 202

uly 8, 2025



MO’s Submission to Standing Committee on Bill 9

Introduction

The Association of Municipalit' s of Ontario (A O) is a non-partisan, non-profi
association represen ing the 444 unicipal governments acro s Ontario. unicipa
governments work through A O to achieve shared goals and meet common
challenges. As the frontline order of government closest to the people, municipal
governments are deeplyi v edinp moting healthy local democracy and
accountability.

Given this, A O is pleased to provide comments about Bill 9, An ctto mend the City
of Toronto Act, 2006 and he unicipal ct, 001 in Relation to Codes of Conduct or
known in short as the Municipal Accountability Act, 2025. This submission provides

O’s recommendations about mendments to strengthen the legislation to ensure tha
it delivers on its promise and potential to hold municipal officials to the highest ethical
standards.

General Support

Municipal go ernments are the most rusted, open and transparent order of
government. Maintaining ethical eha iour and respectful discourse are at he heart o
public t st. All Ontarians also expect to work in a safe and respectful environment,
including members of council hen they agree to take office. unicipalities have seen
that the current tools avail ble to municipal councils to ensure ethical behaviour are
inadequate and do not mee public e pectations. Since 2021, A O and its m mbers
have continued to call on the pro 'nce for better tools to enforce accountability for
municipal elected offici Is.

AMO is pleased to see the gov r ment action in response to sector concerns. We
largely support these proposed changes, including enabling the standardization o
municipal codes of conduct an in e rity commissioner investigation processes. MO
also commends the go ermment a d Standing Committee for their broad sector
engagement on the legislation as well as the commitment to consult with municipalities
on the regulations that will suppo this evolving framework.

With scoped amendments, this legislation will help reinforce accountab'lity and support
both a safe and respectfu work vi on ent for members of council and formu * ip
staff.

1

AM



AMO'’s Submission to Standing Com itt e on Bill 9

Recommended Amendment 1: Adjus Unanimous Consen

Changes propo ed o:
Section, 160.0.4 (2), Sch ule 1, City of Toronto Act, 2006 and
Section 223.4. .4 (2), Sc edule 2, unicipal Act, 2001

A O recommends hat ha the r moval from office vote be adjusted fr mu  ‘mous to
a supermajority (a vote by tleast 2 3 of Council). Previously, MO had ad ca ed for
the removal from o ice procedure to be in the hands of the judiciary. H we er, 'n
recognizing the government’s interest in leaving this decision to elected mu ici a
officials, we believe a council supermajority vote is more appropriate.

We ecognize that a votet remove an elected municipal officia from offc is

u da e tall different than a regular council vote, but the current proposals  too
high of a threshold and poses equity issues as council sizes vary across the p  ince. In
addition, the removal process already includes significant checks and balance that
reduce the need for a unanimous vote, including recommendations forremo r m
both the local integrity commissioner and the Integrity Commissioner of Ontario.

Reco mended Amendment : Provide a Range of Penalties

Ch nges proposed to:
Section, 160 (5), chedule 1, City of Toronto Act, 2006 and
Section 223.4 (5), Schedule 2, Municipal Act, 2001

A Orecommend hat he legislation includes a progressive range of discipi e options
for integrity commissioners that are aligned with what was established un ert e
Education Act in 2023. These options would provide a standard list of penaltie h t
could be applied apart from removal from office, including censure ofam m er, b rring
attendance at meetings, barring a member from sitting on committees, an bar ing a
member from being chair or vice chair of committees.



AMO'’s Submission to Standing C m ittee on Bill 9

Concluson

AMO commend the government for taking action to addre s the onc n raised
across the s to . Municipal councils have been looking for new tools o ddress
modern hallenges in ocal government, including stronger mecha is o a dress
ituations of erious misconduct when they arise. Where thereisa eio c¢ de of
conduct violati n,  nicipal councils need the authority to take acti ns that re
measured, ap r priate and effecti e.

Our members are proud o erve their communities and under tandt t ' ‘ngon
municipal ouncls is a both a privilege and a responsibility. We look orward to
continuing to ork ith the provincial government to pre erve and impro e public
confidence in u communities.



7/18/25, 10:32 AM The Almaguin Summer Star Party is Set to Shine @

Home / Pead y & Discover More! / The Almaguin Summer Star Party is Set to Shine

ay PR

LI ¥

The Almaguin Summer Star Party is Set to
Shine

BY JAKE / JULY 8, 2025

This ugust the stars will come out to play in the Almaguin Highlands with a two-
night special event. Look to the heavens with the help of skilled astronomers to see
faraway galaxies, shooting stars and the planets and wonders of our solar system.

Local businesses and accommodation providers have come together to offer the ultimate star gazing
experience with themed food and drink offerings for participants and discounts at a host of places to
stay to make a memorable night turn into unforgettable days.

“Society has lost the intimacy with the night sky. We aim to reconnect with the vastness and beauty of
the universe. In re-discovering it together we reawake as humans reminding s of how small we are, yet
how onnected we've always been to the stars and the stories they hold.”

https://thegreatcanadianwildemess.com/the-almaguin-summer-star-party/



)
Charlene Watt (Degusz Clerk)

From: Beth Morton <beth.morton@townshipofperry.ca>
Sent: July 17, 2025 11:20 AM
To: April Stockfish; Brayden Robinson ; Charlene Watt; Cheryl Marshall; Chief Readman;

Chris Hope; Cindy Filmore; Dan Robertson; Dave Gray; Denis Duguay ; Derek Young;

Douglas Holland; Gary Courtice; Heather Pateman; Info; Kerstin Vroom; Kim Seguin;

Laura Brandt; Mayor Rod Ward; Mike Rickward; mmfd Chief; Nancy Field; Nicole

Gourlay; Norm Hofstetter; Paul Schaefer ; Sam Dunnett; Vicky Roeder-Martin
Subject: Proposed Date for Councils to tour the new Live Fire Unit

Good morning:

I have received confirmation from the Fire Chiefs that the Live Fire Unit will be completed shortly, therefore
we are proposing that a tour be set for Thursday, July 31, 2025 at 7:00 pm for members of the RFSC and
Councils. The building is located at the Perry Township Fire Department located at 64 Old Government Road,
Emsdale, Ontario.

Please share this date with all of your Council Members so that they have the opportunity to attend the tour.
If there are any concerns or conflicts with this date, please reach out as soon as possible.

Take care,

Beth Morton, Clerk-Administrator

Township of Perry | 1695 Emsdale Road
Emsdale ON | (705)636-5941
w_ w. ownshipofperry.ca

The Municipal Office is open to the public Monday to Friday from 8:30 am to 4:30 pm. If you wish to discuss
a planning application, kindly email me or call 705-636-5941 to schedule an appointment. We also are
continuing to provide services online, by telephone, and by email. You can also visit our website
www.townshipofperry.ca for more information.

M working day may differ from your working day. Plea e do not feel obliged to reply to this email outside of
your normal working hours.

Disclaimer: This email is intended solely for the person or entity to which it is addressed and may contain confidential and/or
privileged information. Any review, dissemination, copying, printing or other use of this email by persons or entities other than the
addressee is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please contact the sender immediately and delete the material from
any computer.



Ontario (

i . irs ne

202 Northeastern unicipal Council Workshop

Date: October 21, 2025 (9:45 am to 4:15 pm) and October 22, 2025 (9:00 am to 4:00

pm)
Location: Lionel E. Lalonde Centre, reater Sudbury (Azilda) — In Person Only

Agenda:

The Municipal Services Office-North in Sudbury is pleased to invite you to a two-day training
workshop where members of council and staff from across northeastern Ontario will come
together to hear from experts and each other on relevant and timely topics. Sessions will cover
a range of essential learning on municipal governance, finance, land use planning and
affordable housing issues. Please mark your calendars with the date of this event as you don't
want to miss out.

Who Should Attend:

This two-day session will be of interest to both experienced municipal council and staff and
those who are newer to municipal governance and operations.

hy attend:

We are arranging an impressive list of guest speakers with significant municipal knowledge
and leading practices to share. Participants will engage with and hear about experiences and
approaches to common challenges. Attendees will leave the workshop with a greater
understanding of how to tackle current municipal issues and govern effectively and
democratically.

Registratio :

Registration form will be distributed in coming weeks that will include the registration fee for
this event.



Inquiries:

Municipal Services Office — North (Sudbury)

Enrique Paraco, Municipal Advisor Sarah Cormier, Senior Municipal Advisor
Email: enrigue.paraco@ontario.ca Email: sarah.cormier@ontario.ca

Phone: 705-280-0641 Phone: 249-885-2953



	Agenda
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8
	9
	10
	11
	12
	13
	14
	15
	17
	18
	19
	20
	21
	22
	23
	24
	25
	26
	27



